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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREEE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Moody Technology Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”), | report to shareholders our annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year” or “Period”).

RESULTS

The Group recorded revenue of approximately RMB90.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022, representing a decrease of
approximately 41.8% as compared with the revenue of RMB155.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The Group's products
experienced a gross profits margin of approximately 8.2%, as
compared with a gross profits margin of approximately 2.3% from
previous year. Loss attributable to owners of the Company for the
Year increased from loss of approximately RMB100.5 million in 2021
to loss of approximately RMB140.5 million in 2022, representing an
increase of approximately 39.8% as compared with the last year,
which was mainly attributable to net exchange loss of approximately
RMB58.2 million generated from the bonds principles and interests
of approximately RMB913.2 million (equivalent to HKD 1,030 million),
which were dominated in HKD, as affected by depreciation of RMB
against HKD during the Year. Sales of shoes, clothes and others
contributed revenue amounted to approximately RMB66.8 million
(2021: RMB125.6 million) for the year ended 31 December 2022.
Sales of fabrics contributed revenue amounted to approximately
RMB23.7 million (2021: RMB29.9 million) for the year ended 31
December 2022.

OUTLOOK

The Company is in the view that the Group's fabrics business in
2022 has become stable in last year, following the recovery of the
domestic demands on the textile products in the PRC. The decrease
of sales demand of shoes and clothing from the customers in Korea
due to the continuous pandemics of COVID-19 mainly in the first
half of 2022 reduced the Group’s exports volumes from 2021. In
order to improve and expand the business of the Group, the Group
incorporated a subsidiary in Shishi City of Fujian province, PRC, to
manufacture and sell the clothing products to the PRC customers
since the second half of 2022. Looking forward in 2023, the
management consider to boost the local sales of clothing products in
the PRC which can generate higher profit margins. The management
will closely monitor the sales markets of the business and make
adjustment of sales strategies when necessary.
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In January 2023, the issue the scheme shares to the scheme creditors
have been completed. The financial position of the Group is expected
to improve by discharging all the bonds liabilities and accrued bonds
interests for the financial year ending 31 December 2023.

The management will also closely monitor the Group’s financial
performance, financial position and cash flow in order to maintain
the normal operation of the Group.
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Lastly, | would like to express my gratitude on behalf of the Board
to all our stakeholders for giving the Group their care, patience and
support over the years.

Moody Technology Holdings Limited
Li Wanyuan

Acting Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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NEEH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWE D

OVERVIEW

During the Year, the Group’s revenue dropped by 41.8% to RMB90.5
million when compared with last year. Loss attributable to owners of
the Company increased by 39.8% to approximately RMB140.5 million
against last year. Basic and diluted loss per share decreased from loss
per share (restated) of RMB2.24 in 2021 to loss per share of RMB2.16
in 2022.

INDUSTRY REVIEW

According to data from the General Administration of Customs of
China, the export volume of textiles, apparel and clothing accessories
of the PRC reached $323.3 billion in 2022, representing a slight
growth of approximately 2.6% as compared to the previous year.
The garment exports of the PRC grew by 3.2% as compared to the
previous year. The export of garment and clothing accessories reached
US$175 billion in 2022, which was 3.2% higher than the same period
of last year. China’s textile exports, including yarn, fabrics, and others,
registered a growth of 2% year-on-year to reach US$148 billion in
2022. The operating revenue achieved by sizeable textile enterprises
amounted to approximately US$780 billion in 2022, representing a
0.9% increase from 2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group's fabrics business was mainly
manufacturing and sales of dyed garment fabrics. Due to the
continuous pandemics of COVID-19 in the PRC, the number of
customers decreased (2022: 52; 2021: 60) from last year. The Group
mainly focus on selling high-end fabrics products and the average
selling price of fabrics products decreased from approximately RMB5.4
per meter in 2021 to RMB5.2 per meter in 2022, representing a
decrease of approximately 3.7% for the Year. The average cost of
fabrics decreased from approximately RMB5.3 per meter in 2021 to
approximately RMB5.0 per meter in 2022.

The sales volume of the Group’s shoes and clothes decreased from
2021 due to the decrease in the sales demands from the Asian
countries, including Korea and Japan. In order to expand the Group's
business, the Group incorporated a new subsidiary in Shishi, Fujian
and commenced to manufacture and sell different types of clothing
products, including T-shirts, jackets, pants and hoodies, etc. to the
customers in the PRC since the second half of 2022. The management
considered that the local sales in the PRC could generate a higher
profit margin than the overseas sales to the Asian countries. During
the Year, the profit margin of the local sales and export sales of
clothing products were approximately 11.3% and 9.7%, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE Estim & 7 47

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue mainly generated from sales of shoes and clothes
in the Asian countries and manufacturing and sales of fabrics in the
PRC. The total revenue decreased from approximately RMB155.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
RMB90.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.

For the fabrics segment, the number of customers decreased (2022:
52; 2021: 60) from last year. The average selling price of fabrics
products decreased from approximately RMB5.4 per meter in 2021 to
RMB5.2 per meter in 2022, representing a decrease of approximately
3.7% for the Year. These resulted in a decrease in the sales of
fabrics products from approximately RMB29.9 million in 2021 to
approximately RMB23.7 million in 2022, representing a decrease of
approximately 20.7% for the Year.

The decrease of sales demand of shoes and clothing from the
customers in Korea due to the continuous pandemics mainly in the
first half of 2022 reduced the exports volumes from last year, which
resulted in decrease in the Group’s exports sales of shoes and clothes
from approximately RMB125.6 million in 2021 to approximately
RMB66.8 million in 2022, representing a decrease of approximately
46.8% for the Year. In order to expand the business, the Group
commenced to manufacture and sales of clothes to the customers
in the PRC since the second half of 2022. The local sales of clothes
contributed revenue of approximately RMB35.4 million during the
year.

The table below sets out a breakdown of the Group's revenue
categorised by products during the year:
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Year ended 31 December
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ARET T ARET T
Shoes, clothes and others EE REREMEE 66,849 73.8 125,645 80.8
Fabrics R 23,695 26.2 29,896 19.2
Total @t 90,544 100.0 155,541 100.0
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Cost of sales

The Group's cost of sales decreased by 45.3% from approximately
RMB151.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB83.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2022. Such decrease in cost of sales was in line with the decreased
turnover during the Year.

The table below sets out a breakdown of the Group’s cost of sales
categorised by products during the year:

HER X
BE-_ZE-—F+-_A=1+—HBILEE K&£H
BMEKABFBEE-_E-_—F+-_A=1+—8L*F
BEHOAREISIOBE TR P45.3%EHARE
83.1HEB L HERAR DV EAFE L EER D
_@-(o

TREINARERAFERERD BHHEKAN
ARAR

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE

% to total % to total

2022 cost of sales 2021 cost of sales

H & Bk AR

HRHERE
Bk

—E-—
RMB'000
ARBT

RMB'000
ARETT

Shoes, clothes and others /e IREMEMIEE 59,812 71.9 122,924 80.9

Fabrics [ 23,336 28.1 28,990 19.1

Total @t 83,148 100.0 151,914 100.0
Gross profits EF

The Group experienced a gross profit of approximately RMB7.4 million
in 2022, representing a gross profit margin of approximately 8.2%, as
compared to a gross profit of approximately RMB3.6 million in 2021,
representing a gross profit margin of approximately 2.3%. The reason
for such improvement was mainly because the Group commenced
the local sales of the clothing products in the PRC during the Year

FEERZZEZ_FNEFOABARKIAESE
T (EMELHRE2%) M_TZ—FHENA
HRARBIEEBIL (EMNELNAE23%)  EF
EMNETERRAEARAEBRAFTFERRKRERBER
HWHERKEER SAFEERLREHESNF
HERIEE410.5% ©

which increase the profit margin of sales of shoes and clothes to
approximately 10.5% during the Year.

The table below sets out a breakdown of the Group's gross profits
categorised by products during the year:

TREJIAEERAFERE R BNENRMA

Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=1+—HLEE

Gross profit

Gross profit

2022 margin 2021 margin
—E-C EMR —T-—F EfR

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥EF ARET T
Shoes, clothes and others e RERHEMHEE 7,037 10.5% 2,721 2.2%
Fabrics [ig= 359 1.5% 906 3.0%
Total @t 7.396 8.2% 3,627 2.3%
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Other income

Decrease in other income by 46.3% from approximately RMB4.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
RMB2.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 was mainly
attributable to the net effect of (i) a reversal of impairment loss of
property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB2.9 million was
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2021 while there was no
such item for the year ended 31 December 2022; and (ii) the rental
income increased from approximately RMBO0.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to approximately RMB1.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

Net foreign exchange gains/losses

The net foreign exchange loss of approximately RMB58.2 million
was mainly derived from the bonds principles and interests of
approximately RMB913.2 million (equivalent to HKD1,030 million)
which were dominated in HKD, as affected by the depreciation
of RMB against HKD in 2022. The net foreign exchange gain of
approximately RMB17.1 million was mainly derived from the bonds
principles and interests of approximately RMB807.6 million (equivalent
to HKD988.9 million) which were dominated in HKD, as affected by
the appreciation of RMB against HKD in 2021.

Selling and distribution expenses

The increase in selling and distribution expenses by 95.9% from
approximately RMB3.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB5.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 mainly because more staff cost was incurred as more
salespersons were hired during the Year.

General and administrative expenses

The increase in general and administrative expenses by 0.9% from
approximately RMB31.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
to approximately RMB32.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 was mainly attributable to the net effect of (i) an increase in
staff costs (2022: RMB10.7 million; 2021: RMB4.9 million) due to an
increase in the average number of Group’s employees in 2022; (i) an
increase in legal and professional fees from approximately RMB3.4
million in 2021 to approximately RMB4.7 million in 2022; and (iii) a
decrease in an impairment loss of other receivables of approximately
RMB15.1 million which was recognised in 2021.
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Finance costs

The decrease in finance costs by 23.0% from approximately RMB68.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately
RMB52.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 was mainly
because of the decrease of accruals of the interest for the bonds
after the creditor's scheme (the “Scheme”) has become effective on
5 September 2022.

Income tax expense

Income tax expenses of approximately RMBO.7 million was recognised
for the Year, mainly represented under-provision for Hong Kong
Profits Tax in prior years. No provision for both Hong Kong Profits
Tax and PRC Enterprise Income Tax were made because there are no
assessable profits for the subsidiaries in both Hong Kong and PRC.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITIES AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the Year, the cash of the Group was mainly used in the
operating activities and generated from financing activities. For the
year ended 31 December 2022, net cash used in operating activities
of the Group amounted to RMB12.5 million as compared to RMBO.3
million in 2021. Net cash generated from financing activities of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB12.2 million in 2022
as compared to net cash used in financing activities of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB1.0 million in 2021 mainly due to
the decrease in repayment of borrowings during the Year.

Our primary uses of cash are to satisfy our working capital needs and
our capital expenditure needs. Since our establishment, our working
capital needs and capital expenditure requirements have been
principally financed through a combination of shareholders’ equity,
cash generated from operations, and borrowings. The Group adopts
a prudent cash and financial management policy.

In order to achieve better cost control and minimize the cost of funds,
the Group's treasury activities and cash and cash equivalents are
generally deposited with certain financial institutions such as banks
denominated mostly in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.

During the Year, the Company had completed a share consolidation,
two subscriptions of new shares and a placing of new shares.

MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Share Consolidation

On 13 January 2022, the Company announced a proposed share
consolidation on the basis that every ten (10) existing shares
be consolidated into one (1) consolidated share (the “Share
Consolidation”). On 8 March 2022, the Share Consolidation has
become effective and every 10 issued and unissued existing shares of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company was consolidated
into 1 consolidated share of HK$0.1 each.

Details of the Share Consolidation are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 13 January 2022, 10 February 2022,
13 February 2022, 14 February 2022, 15 February 2022, 22 February
2022 and 4 March 2022 and circular dated 27 January 2022.

2022 First Share Subscription

On 13 April 2022, after trading hours of the Stock Exchange,
the Company entered into the subscription agreements with the
subscribers pursuant to which the subscribers had conditionally
agreed to subscribe, and the Company had conditionally agreed to
allot and issue, an aggregate of 10,455,107 subscription shares of
HK$0.24 per subscription share (“2022 First Share Subscription”).
There were not less than six subscribers in number subscribing for
the subscription shares. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
information and belief having made all reasonable enquiries, all the
Subscribers were independent third parties of the Company and its
connected persons. The subscribers were not parties acting in concert
under the Takeover Code. The subscription agreements are not inter-
conditional to each other.

The 2022 First Share Subscription was being conducted for the
Company to raise capital while broadening its shareholder base and
capital base. The net proceeds of the Subscription of approximately
HK$2.42 million was intended to used for costs of debt restructuring
and general working capital of the Group.

On 11 May 2022, the 2022 First Share Subscription was completed
and an aggregate of 10,455,107 subscription shares were allotted
and issued to the subscribers at the subscription price of HK$0.24 per
subscription share. The subscription shares represented approximately
20.00% of the issued share capital of the Company immediately
before the 2022 First Share Subscription and approximately 16.67%
of the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the issue
of the subscription shares immediately upon completion of the 2022
First Share Subscription. The net proceeds from the 2022 First Share
Subscription of approximately HK$2.42 million were used as intended
for costs of restructuring and general working capital of the Group.

iRt

R-B-—F—A+=H ARAESHEHRS
TRV BN E B —(NIRE FFRR (D A9 E 2%
EITRDAEH (TRDEM]) RZZE=Z=F=A
NBRHEHER KRB AFEFI0/FKE
BO.01B B BITMAEITRARMD A 0 A1
A% 5 A E EO0. 178 T & BERR 1D

BHEHFBINARFBPA-_ZS-_—F—F8
+=H - ZEZ=F-A+H ZE=Z=F=A
+=B ¥ F-_A+WA-—E=-—F=
A+AB ZEZZF-_A-+ZHERZZE=-Z=
FZAMNBEBMNAEUARBRHR-_FT-__F—A4
ZHEHBEE-

—EC_FHRRORAE
RIE-—FMA+=-BEIHAZIIEEE KX
NAHEZERBATLZERERH B %
ERBAEBRMERERE MAQREHKH
A= B2 B 174 ££10,455,1070 & IR R B I 10
024 TTHRERHD ([ ZE__FHARHR
B - ATINAZZERBEARERBIRMD-
MEBREH VA BERNEBINAAN  REBEREE
FIBEZERBAYVAARRINEBEATZEY
F=F - ZERBANEWEFAIE T — BT
AT ZEREWHZEWIEE BIEME-

R _FHRBORBBNARRREREEN
RIS AR R AR METT - BB F RS R
FEAAEBBTRANAEEEREAKAN
k—REEES-

CECCFHERBRORBER T _FAA
+— B HARE ARZEMIEIT10,455,107
BRERD REEATRABERMH0.24E Lo
REROEEE S - —EHAROREIAD
AR BT AR £920.00%  LAR(EERE —T - —
FEARMNRETHNELEITREROERAOAE
NADERANLN16.67% — T —FEH XKD
RS RIEEEA2.428 88 TR a8l AER
SEEANAEAR —REEES -

MR ERAAERLQ T
2022 FEWRE

11



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEstsm K 7 7

Details of the 2022 First Share Subscription are set out in the
Company's announcements dated 13 April 2022 and 11 May 2022.

2022 Second Share Subscription

On 5 July 2022, after trading hours of the Stock Exchange, the
Company entered into the subscription agreements with the
Subscribers pursuant to which the subscribers had conditionally
agreed to subscribe, and the Company had conditionally agreed to
allot and issue, an aggregate of 12,546,128 subscription shares of
HK$0.375 per subscription share (“2022 Second Share Subscription”).
There were not less than six subscribers in number subscribing for
the subscription shares. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
information and belief having made all reasonable enquiries, all the
Subscribers were independent third parties of the Company and its
connected persons. The subscribers were not parties acting in concert
under the Takeover Code. The subscription agreements are not inter-
conditional to each other.

The 2022 Second Share Subscription was being conducted for the
Company to raise capital while broadening its shareholder base and
capital base. The net proceeds of the Subscription of approximately
HK$4.59 million was intended to used for costs of debt restructuring
and general working capital of the Group.

On 27 July 2022, the 2022 Second Share Subscription was completed
and an aggregate of 12,546,128 subscription shares were allotted
and issued to the subscribers at the subscription price of HK$0.375
per subscription share. The subscription shares represented
approximately 20.00% of the issued share capital of the Company
immediately before the 2022 Second Share Subscription and
approximately 16.67% of the issued share capital of the Company
as enlarged by the issue of the subscription shares immediately upon
completion of the 2022 Second Share Subscription. The net proceeds
from the 2022 Second Share Subscription of approximately HK$4.59
million were used as intended for costs of restructuring and general
working capital of the Group.

Details of the 2022 Second Share Subscription are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 5 July 2022 and 27 July 2022.
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2022 Placing

On 23 November 2022, after trading hours of the Stock Exchange,
the Company entered into the placing agreement (the “Placing
Agreement”) with JMC Capital International Limited (the “Placing
Agent”) pursuant to which the Company appointed the Placing
Agent as its agent to procure not less than six placees to subscribe
up to 15,055,354 placing shares (the “Placing Shares”) at a price
of HK$0.51 per Placing Share on a best effort basis on the terms
and subject to the condition of the Placing Agreement. On 24
November 2022, after the trading hours of the Stock Exchange, the
Company entered into a supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) with the Placing Agent and the placing price per
Placing Share was amended to HK$0.52 per Placing Share (the “2022
Placing”).

The Directors considered that the 2022 Placing offered a good
opportunity to raise further capital of the Company thereby increasing
the liquidity of the shares as well as to strengthen the financial
position of the Group. The Directors considered that the terms of
Placing Agreement and Supplemental Agreement were fair and
reasonable and the 2022 Placing is in the interests of the Company
and its Shareholders as a whole.

On 15 December 2022, the 2022 Placing was completed and an
aggregate of 15,055,354 Placing Shares were successfully placed by
the Placing Agent to not less than six placees at the placing price of
HK$0.52 per Placing Share. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
information and belief having made all reasonable enquiries, the
placees are third parties independent of the Company and not
connected nor acting in concert with any of the connected persons of
the Company or any of their respective associates.

The Placing shares represented approximately 20.00% of the
issued share capital of the Company immediately before the 2022
Placing and approximately 16.67% of the issued share capital of
the Company as enlarged by the issue of the subscription shares
immediately upon completion of the 2022 Placing. The net proceeds
from the 2022 Placing of approximately HK$7.60 million were used
as intended for costs of restructuring and general working capital of
the Group.
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As at 31 December 2022, the utilised net proceeds from the 2022
Placing was approximately HK$7.0 million including HK$0.5 million
for costs of restructuring and HK$6.5 million for general working
capital of the Group. The unutilised net proceeds up to 31 December
2022 of HK$0.6 million would be used for general working capital of
the Group.

Details of the 2022 Placing are set out in the Company's
announcements dated 23 November 2022, 24 November 2022 and
15 December 2022.

Net current assets and working capital
The following table sets forth the Group's current ratio, quick ratio,
gearing ratio and debt to equity as at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

Current assets MENEE
Current liabilities mENAE
Net current liabilities MENAEFE
Current ratio mB)E R
Quick ratio RE)LE R
Gearing ratio BEAMFGLE
Debt to equity ratio BRI A b &

BORROWINGS
Particulars of borrowings of the Company and the Group as at
31 December 2022 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s rights-of-use assets and
buildings, machinery and equipment with an aggregate net book
value of approximately RMB147.4 million were pledged to secure
banking facilities for purposes of working capital and purchases of
fixed assets for the Group (as at 31 December 2021: approximately
RMB160.7 million).
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group mainly operates in the mainland China with most of
the revenue and expenditure transactions denominated and settled
in RMB, where its foreign exchange risk is limited. The Group’s
exposure to foreign exchange risk is mainly on its sales and purchase
transactions (i.e. export or import of products) in Hong Kong which
are mainly denominated in US$, and the bonds denominated in HKD.
The functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries is RMB
and HKD.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as those disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2022.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF ASSOCIATED
COMPANIES

Very substantial acquisition in relation to acquisition
of 80.95% of the issued share capital of the Target
Company

References are made to the announcements of the Company dated
26 July 2021, 31 August 2021, 30 September 2021, 29 October
2021, 17 December 2021 and 31 December 2021 in relation to
the acquisition of 51% of the issued share capital of the Target
Company at the consideration of HK$12,240,000, which involved
the issue and allotment of 102,000,000 consideration shares under
the specific mandate of the Company at the issue price of HK$0.12
per consideration share (prior to the Share Consolidation has become
effective). As certain conditions under the previous sale and purchase
agreement dated 26 July 2021 (as supplemented by an agreement
dated 31 December 2021, collectively, the “Previous Agreement”)
have not been fulfilled (or waived) by 30 June 2022 (the "Previous
Extended Long Stop Date”) and no agreement was reached by
Vendor A and the Company to further extend the Previous Extended
Long Stop Date, the Previous Agreement has ceased and terminated
and none of the parties thereto shall have any obligations and
liabilities towards each other.

SN BE 5 R B

AEEEERTENGEE FTAKBDRER
%i&%uAEMﬁ@&#M'wwmcﬁﬂ
BR-AEEARELINERREERESRS
M%mﬁﬁm%%&%%x%(WﬁDIﬁDF
) MESBABTTE E - A AR REMEAF
R I R AR R -

KAREE
A GBS MR M 32T RBE SN B ==
F+-A=+—B FEEYECAEARAS

5 -

EARE EAUWBURLEEBRE D
=]

BRAWE R R QT 280.95%C HITRA
ZHEERRBER

BiIRAMARRBHA-_ST-_—FtA=-+8"
- N\A=+—B - ZZE-_—FAA=+
A - —F+A=-+hhB 2= —F+=
At++tBR-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—Hz2A %"
NA B BIENRE12,240,0008 TWEREZAFAZ
51%B BHITRA - By RIRIBEA R R 2 BRI
ERBETESRAREBRMG012BITHETRER
102ooooooﬂxwﬁﬂxfﬁ(foﬁamixﬁzﬁu)
MRASAE S -_—FLtA-_+"BZANESR
ik (i<<<EIHH7%_s_—¢+ B=+—B2%
EWE SEAILABEET ZE T KN
RZZEZZFXNA= +E|(HEH|Z«<LE X & E
IEBEES) ZamREENX (ERE) BESTAKR
RARITEEK D HEAE P ERAILEER R
BEILAY MENBRELEELERKIL BE
A — TG H I AT RSERE T

MR ERAAERLQ T
2022 FEWRE

15



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEstsm K 7 7

References are made to the announcement of the Company dated
14 October 2022 in relation to the very substantial acquisition
in relation to the acquisition of approximately 80.95% (the
"Acquisition”) of the issued share capital of the target company. After
continuous negotiations with Vendor A, on 14 October 2022, after
trading hours of the Stock Exchange, the Company and the Vendors
entered into the Agreement, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to acquire, and the Vendors conditionally agreed
to sell, the Sale Shares representing an aggregate of approximately
80.95% of the issued share capital in the Target Company for the
consideration of HK$21,000,000, which will be satisfied by cash.
To the best knowledge, information and belief of the Directors and
having made all reasonable enquiries, each of the Vendors and
the ultimate beneficial owners are third parties independent of the
Company and its connected persons.

It is expected that the Acquisition could expand the Company’s
business in the production and the sales of elastic webbing used for
bras and underwear, and strengthen the products, revenue sources
and cash flow position of the Group in future. The Directors are
of the view that the Acquisition is fair and reasonable, on normal
commercial terms and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

The long-stop date of the Acquisition is the day falling on the sixth
month from the date of the Agreement, i.e. 14 April 2023 or such
other date as may be agreed by the Company and the Vendors in
writing. A special general meeting will be convened and held for
the Shareholders to consider and, if thought fit, pass the ordinary
resolutions to approve, among other things, the Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total workforce of 167 (as
at 31 December 2021: 83). The total staff costs, including Directors’
emoluments and retirement benefit scheme contributions, of the
Group were approximately RMB10.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: approximately RMB4.9 million).
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More staff were recruited for the new production line of clothing
in Fujian during the year. The Group offers its staff competitive
remuneration schemes. In addition, discretionary bonuses and share
options may also be granted to eligible staff based on individual and
Group's performance. The Group is committed to nurturing a learning
and sharing culture in the organization. Heavy emphasis is placed on
the training and development of individual staff and team building, as
the Group’s success is dependent on the contribution of all functional
divisions comprising skilled and motivated staff.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). As
there is no interim dividend payable during the year, there will be no
dividend distribution for the whole year of 2022.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s shares
by the Company or its subsidiaries during the Year.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Pursuant to the resolution to approve the Scheme was duly passed
on 8 June 2022 and the Scheme has been sanctioned by the Hong
Kong Court on 28 June 2022, the Scheme has become effective
on 5 September 2022. The completion of issue of Scheme Shares
under specific mandate (the “Completion”) took place on 4 January
2023. An aggregate of 3,262,705,241 Scheme Shares were allotted
and issued to the Scheme Creditors at the issue price of HK$0.317
per Scheme Share for settlement of the all Admitted Claims of the
Scheme Creditors totalling approximately HK$1,034.3 million.

Upon Completion, all the Admitted Claims owing by the Company to
the Scheme Creditors, including all amount owing by the Company
under the Bonds (including the Notes), will be discharged and
released in full.
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The shareholding structure of the Company before and after AR FRIRTEKATE ZIRIERENT
Completion are as follows:

Immediately before Immediately after
Completion Completion

ST KA RKETRE

Number Approximate Number  Approximate
Shareholders of the Company A of Shares % of Shares %
BB A BMAF L BRHHA BMABDL

Scheme Creditors STEIEEA - - 3,262,705,241 97.31
Other Shareholders Hi s 90,332,124 100.00 90,332,124 2.69
Total At 90,332,124 100.00 3,353,037,365 100.00
Details of the above are set out in the Company’s announcements it A F1E D BIEH N AR FH ,Hﬁ)?%:%@:g
and circulars dated 11 November 2020, 11 April 2022, 18 May 2022, F+— A ‘1’ A —E-_—_FWA+—8"
9 June 2022, 28 June 2022, 21 July 2022, 5 September 2022 and ——FHA+ N \B-ZZE=-_—_FXANLH"
4 January 2023 respectively. ZZHEANAZHNB - ZEZ=ZFtA=+— E
:7::¢HH£E&_7__¢ = RUSNEON
=Nl
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
"CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate
governance. The manner in which the principles and code provisions
in the CG Code are applied and implemented during the year ended
31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report (the
“Period”) is explained in this Corporate Governance Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company was committed to maintaining high level of corporate
governance and has steered its development and protected the
interests of its shareholders in an enlightened and open manner. The
Board comprises two executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors. The Board has complied with the applicable code
provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year save for
code provision A.1.8.

Code provision A.1.8 of the CG Code stipulates that the Company
should arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors. Currently, the Company does not consider
necessary to have insurance cover for legal action against its Directors
and will monitor any changes to the situation and make necessary
action. The Board believes with the current internal control system
and the close supervision of the management, the Directors’ risk
of being sued or getting involved in litigation in their capacity as
Directors is relatively low.

The Company will, from time to time, review and enhance its
corporate governance practices to ensure that these continue to meet
the requirements of the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and employees who are likely
to possess inside information of the Company (the “Securities Dealing
Code”). The Company had made specific enquiry of all Directors
whether they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the Period and all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code and the Securities Dealing Code
throughout the Period.

No incident of non-compliance of the Securities Dealing Code by the
employees was noted by the Company during the Period.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and performance of
the Group. The Board has delegated to the executive Directors and
senior management the authority and responsibility for the day-to-day
management and operation of the Group. In addition, the Board
has established Board committees and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in their respective terms
of reference.

All Directors carry out duties in good faith, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders at all times.

Board Composition
The Board currently comprises five members, consisting of two
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has throughout the Period met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, and
accounting or related financial management expertise. At all times
during the Period, the independent non-executive Directors represent
at least one-third of the Board.
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The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Li Wanyuan (Acting Chairman)
Ms. Lin Yuxi

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chow Yun Cheung

Mr. Lin Yugang

Mr. Liu Junting

A description of the biographies of the Directors is set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report.

The list of Directors is also disclosed in all corporate communications
issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to
time. The independent non-executive Directors are expressly identified
in all corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve
on the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

As at the date of this annual report, the Acting Chairman of the
Company, Mr. Li Wanyuan, leads the Board in the determination of
the strategy of the Group and in the achievement of its objectives. He
is responsible for organizing the business of the Board, ensuring its
effectiveness and setting agenda but not involved in the day-to-day
business of the Group.

The Company at present does not have a Chief Executive Officer.
The duties and responsibilities of the Chief Executive Officer of daily
operation of the Group are carried out by the executive Directors
and they are accountable to the Board for financial and operational
performance of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, at each annual general meeting
of the Company, one third of the Directors for the time being (or,
if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. The Directors to retire by rotation shall
include any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself
for reelection. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those of
the other Directors subject to retirement by rotation who have been
longest in office since their last re-election or appointment and so that
as between persons who became or were last re-elected Directors on
the same day those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. Any Director appointed pursuant to
Bye-law 83(2) shall not be taken into account in determining which
particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to retire by
rotation.

The following Directors will retire by rotation and offer themselves for
re-election in the forthcoming AGM to be held on 19 May 2023:

Mr. Li Wanyuan
Mr. Chow Yun Cheung
Mr. Liu Junting
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid down in the Company’s articles of association.
Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be eligible for re-election and any Director appointed as an
addition to the Board shall hold office until the next annual general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be eligible
for re-election. Where vacancies arise at the Board, candidates
will be proposed and put forward to the Board by the Nomination
Committee.

Induction and Continuing Development of Directors
Each newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive induction
on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

According to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company should be responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, as well as placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors.

Board Meetings
Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Directors’ resolutions were passed by way of written resolutions or by
physical meetings during the Period. The Board is expected to meet
regularly and at least two times a year. The Directors have full access
to information on the Group and independent professional advice at
all times whenever deemed necessary by the Directors.
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The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group, and to review and
approve the Group's annual and interim results. During the year and
up to the date of this annual report, 3 Board meetings were held and
attendance of each Director at the Board meetings as well as general
meetings in 2022 is set out as follows:

EEeEHeEATmAREERRIEALE
BLRMBRE UEHARBMEREENFE
EHBMRE - RFARBEERNFHRAMERT3
REFZEEF REEN_T__FHT2E
ZEERLBMRAREGHFERFINMT

Annual Special

Board General General

Meetings Meeting Meeting

IR R BR=R

Board member BEEEgHE Exged BEXE BRIAE

Executive directors BITES

Mr. Li Wanyuan (Acting Chairman) TERE (KEEE) 3/3 11 3/4

Ms. Lin Yuxi MHEER L 3/3 1/1 3/4
Independent non-executive BAFHITES

directors

Mr. Lin Yugang MRF 5T A4 3/3 11 3/4

Mr. Chow Yun Cheung EEEL A 3/3 11 4/4

Mr. Liu Junting BB - 3/3 11 3/4

The Company has to comply with the CG Code provisions with
regard to the conduct of meetings, has annual meeting schedules and
draft agenda of each meeting made available to directors in advance
and serve notice of regular Board meetings to all directors at least 14
days before the meeting. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is required to be given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information have to be sent to all Directors at least 3 days before
each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep Directors apprised
of the latest developments and financial position of the Company
and to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access to the senior
management where necessary.

The Bye-laws contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) on
27 March 2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The Company also established a regulatory compliance
committee (the “Regulatory Compliance Committee”) on 26 February
2014.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprises three members who are all the
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Liu Junting, Mr. Lin
Yugang, and Mr. Chow Yun Cheung. Mr. Liu Junting is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the Board structure and composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning of directors, and assessing the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors based on criteria such as
integrity, accomplishment, experience, professional and educational
background and time commitments.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The director nomination policy of Company aims to set out the
criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of directors
of the Company; ensure that the board (the “Board”) of directors
of the Company has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company; and ensure the Board
continuity and appropriate leadership at Board level.
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Criteria for nomination and appointment of

Directors
The criteria for selecting any candidate for directorship are set out as
follows:

o bringing an independent judgment and making constructive
recommendation on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of
conducts;

o taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

o serving on the Audit Committee, and the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (in the case of
candidate for Non-Executive Director) and other relevant Board
Committees, if invited;

° devoting sufficient time to the Board and/or any Committee(s)
on which he or she serves so as to allow them to benefit
from his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and
qualifications and diversity through attendance and participation
in the Board;

o scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

o ensuring the Nomination Committees on which he or she serves
to perform their powers and functions conferred on them by
the Board; and

o conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that
may from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained
in the constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by
legislation or the Listing Rules, where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an INED, his or her
independence shall be assessed in accordance with, among other
things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject
to any amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange from time
to time. Where applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education,
qualifications and experience shall also be evaluated to consider
whether he or she has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise for filling the
office of an INED with such qualifications or expertise as required
under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Nomination process
(a) Appointment of New Director

0

(iii)

(iv)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether
such candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should rank
them by order of preference based on the needs of the
Company and reference check of each candidate (where
applicable).

The Nomination Committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for
directorship, as applicable.

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder for
election as a director at the general meeting of the
Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out above to determine whether such candidate
is qualified for directorship. Where appropriate, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should make
recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed election of director at the general meeting.

(b) Re-election of Director at General Meeting

0

(ii)

(iii)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
also review and determine whether the retiring director
continues to meet the criteria as set out above.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should then
make recommendation to shareholders in respect of the
proposed re-election of director at the general meeting.
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Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-elect a
candidate as director at the general meeting, the relevant information
of the candidate will be disclosed in the circular to shareholders
and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the
relevant general meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules and/or
applicable laws and regulations.

(c) Re-election of INED at General Meeting

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual as
an INED at the general meeting, it should set out in the circular
to shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying
the notice of the relevant general meeting:

(i)  the process used for identifying the individual and why
the Board believes the individual should be elected
and the reasons why it considers the individual to be
independent;

(i) if the proposed INED will be holding their seventh (or
more) listed company directorship, why the Board believes
the individual would still be able to devote sufficient time
to the Board;

(i) the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual
can bring to the Board; and

(iv)  how the individual contributes to diversity (including
gender diversity) of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review on the
structure, size and composition of the Board and this Policy and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and business needs,
to comply with all applicable laws and regulations from time to time
and maintain good corporate governance practice.
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On 27 March 2014, the Board adopted a board diversity policy which
aims to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. All
Board appointments will be based on merit while taking into account
diversity including gender diversity. The Nomination Committee will
regularly review the measurable objectives to ensure its effectiveness
to achieve diversity on the Board. The following measurable objectives
have been set for implementing the board diversity policy:

. inclusion of candidates for Board members with overseas
working experience (outside of PRC);

o ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on selection of
Directors;

o inclusion of candidates for Board members with working
experience in other industries; and

o inclusion of candidates for Board members with knowledge and
skills in different aspects.

As at the date of this annual report, the above objectives have been
achieved, 1 out of 5 members of the Board has overseas working
experience and 2 out of 5 members of the Board have accounting or
other professional qualifications.

The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a year. During
the year and up to the date of this annual report, two committee
meetings were held to review the structure and composition of the
Board and the re-election of the retiring Directors and attendance of
each member is set out as follows:
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Number of meetings

attended/held
Committee member ZEERE HE /" BITEBRHE
Mr. Liu Junting (chairman) BEsESRE (£/E) 2/2
Mr. Lin Yugang PRI 5 A 2/2
Mr. Chow Yun Cheung AEELA 2/2
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The Nomination Committee has adopted a written nomination
procedure (the “Nomination Procedure”) specifying the process
and criteria for the selection and recommendation of candidates
for directorship of the Company. The Nomination Committee shall,
based on those criteria as set out in the Nomination Procedure (such
as appropriate experience, personal skills and time commitment etc.),
identify and recommend the proposed candidate to the Board for
approval of an appointment.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an induction package
containing all key legal and Listing Rules’ requirements as well as
guidelines on the responsibilities and obligations to be observed by a
Director. The package will also include the latest published financial
reports of the Company and the documentation for the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Board. The senior management
will subsequently conduct such briefing as is necessary to give the
new Directors more detailed information on the Group's businesses
and activities.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members who are all
the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lin Yugang,
Mr. Chow Yun Cheung and Mr. Liu Junting. Mr. Lin Yugang is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the executive
Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his own
remuneration, which remuneration will be determined by reference to
the performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.
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The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a year. During
the year and up to the date of this annual report, two committee
meetings were held to review and discuss the existing policy and
structure for the remuneration of Directors, the remuneration
packages of both the executive and non-executive Directors and
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

RERKRE
EAFHRBHEETMAZESEZUARTR
ARRITERRESNTIEE URRTE
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;HyWT
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Number of meetings
attended/held

HiE
Committee member ZEERE HITERRE
Mr. Lin Yugang (chairman) MFMEE (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Chow Yun Cheung EREL A 2/2
Mr. Liu Junting Bz kAt 2/2

The Remuneration Committee confirms that the remuneration
payable to Directors will depend on their respective contractual terms
under their employment or service contracts as approved by the Board
on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the senior management for the year ended 31 December 2022 is
set out below:
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Number of individuals

A

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members who are the
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chow Yun Cheung,
Mr. Lin Yugang and Mr. Liu Junting. Mr. Chow Yun Cheung is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the staff responsible for
the accounting and financial reporting function, internal auditor
or external auditors before submission to the Board;

To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditors; and

To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee oversees the internal control system of the
Group, reports to the Board on any material issues, and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year. During the year
up to the date of this annual report, three committee meetings were
held and the attendance of each member is set out as follows:
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Number of meetings
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HES
Committee member ZESHE BITERRY
Mr. Chow Yun Cheung (chairman) ABELE (FE) 3/3
Mr. Lin Yugang PRI 5 A 3/3
Mr. Liu Junting 2B LA 3/3
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During the meetings held in 2022 and the first quarter of 2023, the
Audit Committee had performed the work as summarised below:

(i) reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees proposed by
the external auditor regarding the final audit of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “2022 Final Audit”);

(i)  reviewed the external auditor's report of findings and audit
opinion in relation to the 2022 Final Audit for the year ended
31 December 2022;

(i)  reviewed the management accounts of the Group and the
Group's 2022 interim financial statements;

(iv)  reviewed the financial report for the six months ended 30 June
2022;

(v) reviewed the Company’s financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems to ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have effective systems;

(vi) reviewed the Company’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

(vii) reviewed the external auditor's management letter, material
queries raised by the external auditor to the management, if
any, in respect of the accounting records, financial accounts
or systems of control and the management’s response to such
queries; and

(viii) reported to the Board on the matters set out in the Code on
the Audit Committee.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the external auditors.
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Regulatory Compliance Committee
The Regulatory Compliance Committee comprises of two members,
namely Mr. Li Wanyuan and Mr. Tse Kwok Hing Henry.

The primary duties of the Regulatory Compliance Committee are
to ensure that the Group's business operations and activities are
in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations, and the
Regulatory Compliance Committee directly reports to the Board.

The Regulatory Compliance Committee shall meet at least once a
year. During the year, one committee meeting were held to review
and discuss the compliance status of the existing business operations
and activities, with the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
Hong Kong and the respective jurisdictions if applicable. Attendance
of each member is set out as follows:
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Number of meetings

attended/held
HE
Committee member ZEgHE BITEEYE
Mr. Li Wanyuan (Executive Director) TENEE(HTESE) ”n
Mr. Tse Kwok Hing Henry (Company Secretary) B B4 (2 aG1f# &) 11
GOING CONCERN ISSUE REREEERE
The Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB139,836,000 forthe #HE_-_Z -+ _-_A=+—HILFE K&

year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had net current liabilities
and capital deficiency of approximately RMB1,226,749,000 and
RMB1,175,335,000 respectively as at 31 December 2022. In addition,
as disclosed in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements, as at
31 December 2022, the Group’s bank borrowings of approximately
RMB162,974,000 are subject to renewal or to be fully repaid within
the next twelve months, of which approximately RMB102,974,000
were overdue. Furthermore, The Group recorded net operating cash
outflow for the year ended 31 December 2022 with the Group’s total
bank and cash balance remaining at a low level of RMB1,298,000 as
of 31 December 2022. These conditions indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the Group may be
unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.
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Having carefully considered the liquidity and working capital
requirements for the next twelve months, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on going concern basis. Certain
plans and measures have been or will be taken by director of the
Company to mitigate the Group’s liquidity pressure and to improve its
cashflows which include, but are not limited to, the following:

(@ The Group will negotiate with certain financial institutions,
including the existing major lenders, for options of restructuring
of the Group’s existing borrowings or new financing;

(b) The Group will continue its ongoing efforts to convince the
lenders of the defaulted borrowing not to take any actions
against the Group for immediate payment of the principals and
interest of these borrowings;

(c)  Obtain external source of funding from potential investors by
issuance of new shares;

(d)  Upon completion of issue of scheme shares on 4 January 2023,
the admitted claims owing by the Company to the scheme
creditors, including all amount owing by the Company to the
bondholders will be discharged and released in full; and

(e)  The directors of the Company have been taking various cost
control measures to tighten the costs of operations and
implementing various strategies to enhance the Group's
revenue.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, considering the
abovementioned plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within twelve months from 31
December 2022. Accordingly, they are satisfied that it is appropriate
to prepare the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.
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Notwithstanding the above, material uncertainties exist as to whether
the Group will be able to achieve its plans and measures as described
above. Whether the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern would depend upon the following:

(@ successfully securing new financing from the financial
institutions to fund its operations and financial obligations as
well as restructuring of the existing borrowings to extend the
payment schedule;

(b) successful negotiations with the lenders of the defaulted
borrowing that they will not take any actions against the Group
to exercise their rights to demand immediate payment of the
principals and interests of these borrowings;

() successful obtain external source of funding from potential
investors by issuance of new shares; and

(d) the Group’s ability to generate operating cash flows to meet
the Group's ongoing funding needs as well as successfully
controlling operations costs and capital expenditure.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to the consolidated financial
statements, to write down the value of assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.
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DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensure that Board procedures and all applicable laws and
regulations are followed. Each Director is normally able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the executive Directors and the senior
management. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transactions entered into by the aforesaid
officers.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price
sensitive announcements and other disclosures required under the
Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

The reporting responsibility of the external auditor of the Company
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group are set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Reports in this annual report.

EEBE2ER
EEERBUAAAMAEAFENRERE
BENERERRARRAFE BERERHE
B OABEEREAREEAS EARS (LH
RESTESRASERIRS) MHEEHR -
ZAEEREMEANBRELEE -

FTAEESHI2EMNKENEHEEBE R
RABIWMENERNMRY SEERETES
ERFEMBEBEREREZR BREF—RA
REZEBRATENEFSRHIERES BT
EXER BRALAQRAAE-

ARAHEER THREEBEERTHOTES
EEafERAB EROBEMBAEEENR
Ao bl SEABEBEFLEMNERARFHATAR
E=gmEHE-

EEVSE: A
EERRESRUARABRE T - —F+=
A=t—ALFEMBRRZEL:

RELTRABEREMEELREERE &
ZEeARANFERTHRE REGFXRLSE
KEMIKE 2RI BHMASRIEMRE 27 -

ERFEREFTREATEANNBRERN
EFRARBLETAMUEZ AL DN HEE
Eth S0 AT A o

ARASNEZBMBANAREA G HEHERRL
RRETCHNAFRB LB RS -

MR ERAAERLQ T 37
2022 FEWRE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ B8 &

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company
assets and with the support of the Audit Committee, reviewing the
effectiveness of such system on an annual basis. The Group has
developed its systems of internal control and risk management. The
internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate effective
and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial reporting
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to identify and
manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of the Group.

Certain internal control deficiencies were identified and reported to
the Board. The Group is ongoing to locate an internal control advisor
to review the internal control system of the Group, and conduct
remedies for any deficiencies identified on considered necessary in
due course.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration paid/
payable to the Company’s auditor, McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA
Limited, amounted to approximately RMB842,000 in respect of the
annual audit service and approximately RMB472,000 in respect of
other services.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the independent
auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives letter every year from the independent auditor
confirming their independence and objectivity and holds meetings
with representatives of the independent auditor to consider the scope
of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and appropriateness of
non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The Audit Committee
also makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
retention of the independent auditor.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Tse Kwok Hing Henry,
is a full-time employee of the Group. Please refer to his biographical
details as set out on page 42 of this annual report.
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Rights of Shareholders to Convene a Special General
Meeting

Pursuant to Bye-law 58, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call
special general meetings, and members holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require a special general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty
one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Act.

Sending Enquiries to the Board and Procedures

for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

Shareholders or investors can contact the Company in the following
ways to make enquiry or to provide suggestions:

Contact Person: Mr. Tse Kwok Hing Henry, Company Secretary

Postal Address: 20/F Infinitus Plaza, 199 Des Voeux Road
Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong

To put forward proposals at a general meeting, the shareholders
should submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed
contact information to the company secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business stated above.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company also recognises the importance of transparency
and timely disclosure of corporate information, which will enable
shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Company continues to enhance communication and relationship with
its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative
and timely manner.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
would be proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholder meetings, including the election of individual directors.

Al resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted on
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each
shareholder meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company’s constitutional documents are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Wanyuan (ZEJt) (“Mr. Li") has been appointed as the
Acting Chairman and Executive Director of the Company with effect
from 22 October 2021. Mr. Li, aged 60, is an entrepreneur. In 1999,
he started running factories and founded Zhuhai Wanyi Enterprise
Co., Ltd. (BREMEBELEEMRAA), which mainly engaged in
sales of electrical machinery and equipment and provision of repair
and maintenance services in PRC. In April 2003, Mr. Li founded
Zhuhai Xiangzhou Wanxin Electricial (38 T &M B # E X &
77) which was mainly engaged in wholesale of electrical products. In
December 2003, Mr. Li started to engage in webbing business and
founded Zhongshan Nan Qu Wanlong Webbing Factory ( /Ll 7 5 [&
BERETH) .

Ms. Lin Yuxi (#&E) (“Ms. Lin") has been appointed as the
Executive Director of the Company with effect from 15 October
2020. Ms. Lin, aged 33, graduated from University of East London
and obtained a degree of bachelor of arts in business management
in 2014. After graduation, Ms. Lin gained extensive experience in
corporate management and strategic planning. Before joining us,
Ms. Lin was the director of general department of Beijing Tengyuan
New Energy Technology Consultancy Service Limited (1t 5 R #7 8%
R EARBERAT) .

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Yun Cheung (/&%) (“Mr. Chow") has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company with effect
from 13 August 2019. Mr. Chow, aged 43, is the company secretary
and financial controller of Titan Invo Technology Limited, the issued
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 872).
Mr. Chow has extensive experience in accounting, corporate finance
and compliance related matters. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong,
and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Since February 2018, Mr. Chow has been appointed
as a non-independent non-executive director of Industronics Berhad
(stockcode: 9393), the issued shares of which are listed on Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad. From 29 January 2021 to 31 March
2023, Mr. Chow was an independent non-executive director of
Echo International Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 8218), the
issued shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. From 20
January 2022 to 7 May 2022, Mr. Chow was an independent non-
executive director of Hon Corporation Limited (stock code: 8259),
the issued shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Since 11
November 2022, Mr. Chow has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of China Shenghai Group Limited (stock code:
1676), the issued shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Lin Yugang (#=FRI) (“Mr. Lin"), aged 54, graduated from
Sun Yat-Sen University with a bachelor's degree in management,
and completed the master’s program in accounting at the School of
Management of Sun Yat-Sen University in 2008. From 1987 to 2001,
he served in the Department of International Business at the Bank
of China for a total of 14 years, where he was primarily responsible
for reviewing offshore letters of credit. Subsequently, he became
an industry expert and was the youngest director of a branch in
Zhongshan City. Mr. Lin was released from work for studying in Sun
Yat-Sen University during 2003, and subsequently resigned from his
position at the Bank of China and successfully founded a number
of companies. Currently, he works at FILTTAFREREERS
[RA @] (Zhongshan City Xunxiang Equity Investment Management
Company*), and also holds the positions of director and financial
controller at BEEXH (ER)IRRBH AR A7 (Chemeida
(Guangdong) Environmental Technology Limited*). Mr. Lin is a
banking and finance professional and an industry veteran in the field
of international trading.

Mr. Liu Junting (I8 %) (“Mr. Liu"), aged 33, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company with
effect from 23 October 2019. Mr. Liu graduated from Beijing Institute
of Technology in July 2013. He is currently the assistant manager
of Zhuhai Lvzhou Industrial Limited. Since 14 January 2020, Mr.
Liu has been appointed as an independent non-executive director
and redesignated as an executive director of China Shenghai Food
Holdings Company Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1676).

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tse Kwok Hing Henry (“Mr. Tse”), aged 38, has been
appointed as the company secretary of the Group with effect from
7 November 2019. Mr. Tse has extensive experience in accounting,
auditing and finance fields. Mr. Tse was the chief financial officer and
company secretary of China Yuanbang Property Holdings Limited,
a company listed on the main board of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (Stock Code: BCD.SI) from April 2016 to
May 2018. Since 1 September 2022, Mr. Tse has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of China Environmental
Technology and Bioenergy Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1237). Mr. Tse obtained
a bachelor's degree of Business Administration in Accounting and
Finance from the University of Hong Kong in 2007. He is currently a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are pleased to present
the annual report of the Company with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is engaged in sales of shoes, clothes and others in Asia
and the design, manufacturing and sales of fabrics in the People’s
Republic of China. The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Group is engaged in the sales of shoes, clothes and others, and
manufacturing and sale of fabrics and yarns. Business analysis of
sales, segment results, total assets and capital expenditure are set out
in note 8 to the accompanying financial statements.

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

The Group's revenue mainly came from two main geographical areas,
the Mainland China and Korea. Geographical analysis of the Group
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For details of business review in relation to the development,
performance or position of the Company’s business, please refer to
the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. To the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group in relation to its business
including health and safety, workplace conditions, employment and
the environment. The Group understands that a better future depends
on everyone's participation and contribution. It has encouraged all
employees to participate in environmental and social activities which
benefit the community as a whole.
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Thanks to its active engagement in the enhancement of management
measures and technology improvement, the Group incurred less unit
electricity consumption and expenses in production as compared to
that of last year. The Group also advocated conservation of resources
in office and encouraged employees to develop good habits, conserve
resources and energy to build a green and comfortable office
environment. The Group will issue a separate environmental, social
and governance report for the year ended 31 December 2022 in due
course with the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. As at 31 December 2022, no reserve of the Company was
available for distribution (2021: Nil).

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable and other donations during
the year (2021: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of and reasons for movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year under review are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 146 to 148 of this
annual report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights over shares of the
Company under the Company’s Bye-laws (the “Bye-laws"”) or the laws
of Bermuda where the Company is incorporated, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders of the Company.

AUDITOR

The Board has appointed McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA
Limited (“McMillan Woods") with effect from 10 February 2020
to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Worldlink.
McMillan Woods will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company on 19 May 2023.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are as follows:

Executive directors
Mr. Li Wanyuan (Acting Chairman)
Ms. Lin Yuxi

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Lin Yugang

Mr. Chow Yun Cheung

Mr. Liu Junting
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The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management”.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

Pursuant to Bye-law 84, at each annual general meeting of the
Company, one third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years. The Directors to retire by rotation shall include
any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer himself for re-
election. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those of the other
Directors subject to retirement by rotation who have been longest
in office since their last re-election or appointment and so that as
between persons who became or were last re-elected Directors on
the same day those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. None of the Directors has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF
THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to the service contracts entered into by each of executive
directors as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’ services
contracts” above, each of Mr. Li Wanyuan and Ms. Lin Yuxi is entitled
to a monthly salary of HK$30,000 and HK$20,000, respectively. In
addition, pursuant to the above service contracts, each of them is
also entitled to a management bonus in respect of each financial year
in such sum as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine
aggregate amount of management bonuses payable to all directors.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) for
the benefit of the Directors of the Company is currently in force and
was in force throughout the year.
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INDEPENDENCE OF
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors confirmation of his/her independence and the
Company considers that each of them to be independent based on
the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT NON-

REPORT EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the management on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends to
the Board on the remuneration and other benefits paid by the
Company to the Directors by reference to the Company's operating
results, individual performance and comparable market rates. The
remuneration of all Directors is subject to regular monitoring by
the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their
remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total workforce of 167
(as at 31 December 2021: 83). Employee costs including directors’
emoluments totalled RMB10.7 million for the year of 2022 (2021:
RMB4.9 million). The Group recruited and promoted individual
persons according to their strength and development potential. The
Group determined the remuneration packages of all employees
including the Directors with reference to individual performance and
current market salary scale.

The Group regularly reviews the emolument package of the existing
employees, considers increment of salaries and conducts some long
term incentive scheme when appropriate.

Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 14a to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

A.

Directors’ Interests in the Shares of the
Company

As at 31 December 2022 and the date of this annual report,
none of the Directors and chief executives of the Company had
any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company, any of its Group members or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Future Ordinance (“SFO")) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code.

Substantial shareholders’ interests in the shares
of the Company

As at 31 December 2022 and the date of this annual report, so
far as the Directors are not aware of any persons (not being a
Director of the Company) had or were deemed to have interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who will, directly or indirectly, be interested in 5% or more
of the Company’s issued share capital.

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted the share option scheme on
27 March 2014, and such scheme has become effective on the
Listing Date (the “Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to recognize and acknowledge the contribution
of the eligible participants made to the Group. The Board may, at its
discretion, grant options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to
Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors), the
Company’s subsidiaries, employees of the Group and other persons
the Board considers have contributed or will contribute to the Group.
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company (i.e.
100,000,000 shares), unless otherwise approved by the shareholders
of the Company in general meeting and/or other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules. The subscription price of a share
in respect of a particular option shall be not less than the highest of
(a) the official closing price of the Shares on the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange; (b) the average official closing price of the
shares on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and ()
the nominal value of a share. The Share Option Scheme shall remain
effective within a period of 10 years from that date.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2016, 50,000,000 share options and
50,000,000 share options were granted and exercised, respectively,
representing maximum number of shares to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme. For details of the share option scheme, please
refer to page 57 to 58 of the 2016 annual report and page 44 to 45
of the 2015 annual report, respectively.
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Share options granted

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the date of grant is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity. For the share options granted by the Company,
when they are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will continue to be held in share options reserve. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
other reserve will continue to be held in other reserve.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year. No
contract of significance has been entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group’s largest and five largest customers were 13% and 31% of the
Group's total sales respectively (2021: 6% and 18%). The aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s largest and five largest suppliers
were 17% and 49% of the Group's total purchases respectively
during the year under review (2021: 31% and 81%).

During the year, none of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders (who to the knowledge of the Directors owned more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company) had any interest
in any of the five largest customers or suppliers of the Group.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Being people-oriented, the Group ensures all staff are reasonably
remunerated and continues to improve and regularly review
and update its policies on remuneration and benefits, training,
occupational health and safety. The Group maintains a good
relationship with its customers. A customer complaint handling
mechanism is in place to receive, analyse and study complaints and
make recommendations on remedies with the aim of improving
service quality. The Group is in good relationship with its suppliers
and conducts a fair and strict appraisal of its suppliers on an annual
basis.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company were entered into or subsisted during the year under
review.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No connected transactions were incurred during the year ended
31 December 2022.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, from the Listing Date
and up to the date of this report, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s issued share
capital as required under the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board intends to adopt a prudent dividend payment policy
which will base on the main factor of the Group'’s profitability for the
year. The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). As
there is no interim dividend payable during the year, there will be no
dividend distribution for the whole year at 2022.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company comprises the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the Regulatory
Compliance Committee as described from page 25 to 34 of this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

Each of the Directors has confirmed that he is neither engaged, nor
interested, in any business which, directly or indirectly, competes or
may compete with the Group’s business.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS BY THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The controlling shareholders of the Company, has entered into a
deed of non-competition on 27 March 2014 (the “Deed of Non-
Competition”) so as to better safeguard the Group from any potential
competition and to formalise the principles for the management
of potential conflicts between them and to enhance its corporate
governance in connection with the listing of the shares on the Stock
Exchange.

The independent non-executive Directors were not required to review
any matter in relation to compliance and enforcement of the Deed of
Non-Competition during the Period.

On behalf of the Board

Li Wanyuan

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

McMillanWoods

Professionalism at the forefront

To the members of Moody Technology Holdings Limited

(Joint and Provisional liquidator appointed for restructuring purpose)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements
of Moody Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 145, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the matter
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our
report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient and appropriate
audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these
consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion,
the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements
which mentions that the Group incurred a loss of approximately
RMB139,836,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022, and
as at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current liabilities
and capital deficiency of approximately RMB1,226,749,000 and
RMB1,175,335,000, respectively. In addition, as disclosed in note 24
to the consolidated financial statements, as at 31 December 2022,
the Group's bank borrowings of approximately RMB162,974,000
are subject to renewal or to be fully repaid within the next twelve
months, of which approximately RMB102,974,000 were overdue.
Furthermore, The Group recorded net operating cash outflow for
the year ended 31 December 2022 with the Group’s total bank and
cash balance remining at a low level of RMB1,298,000 as of 31
December 2022. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The director of the Company has been undertaking a number of plans
and measures to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position,
which are set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends on the outcome of these
plans and measures, which are subject to multiple uncertainties,
including:

a. successfully securing new financing from the financial
institutions to fund its operations and financial obligations as
well as restructuring of the existing borrowings to extend the
payment schedule;

b.  successful negotiations with the lenders of the defaulted
borrowings that they will not take any actions against the
Group to exercise their rights to demand immediate payment of
the principals and interests of these borrowings;

c.  successful obtain external source of funding from potential
investors by issuance of new shares; and

d. the Group’s ability to generate operating cash flows to meet
the Group’s ongoing funding needs as well as successfully
controlling operations costs and capital expenditure.
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As a result of these multiple uncertainties, the potential interaction
of these uncertainties, and the possible cumulative effect thereof, we
were unable to form an opinion as to whether the going concern
basis of preparation is appropriate. Should the Group fail to achieve
the abovementioned plans and measures, it might not be able to
continue to operate as a going concern, and adjustments would have
to be made to write down the carrying value of the Group's assets
to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-
current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively.
The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") and to issue an auditor’s report solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act and for no other purposes. However, because of the
matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of
our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated
financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hui Chi Kong

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number — P07348

24/F., Siu On Centre
188 Lockhart Road, Wan Chai
Hong Kong

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EOHEERAMEEKRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—FT-_—F+-_HA=+—HAUIFE

2022 2021
—E__ —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTIT

Revenue U &= 9 90,544 155,541
Cost of sales fHE R A (83,148) (151,914)
Gross profit EF 7,396 3,627
Other income H A 10 2,130 3,969
Impairment losses of trade and 8 5 Rk H MW FIE R E

other receivables, net B8 R EE (1,049) (20,090)
Reversals of impairment losses/ BNRBZ REBERD,

(impairment losses) of prepayments (CREE#E) 382 (2,106)
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains FEN (BE) W F5E (58,183) 17,109
Selling and distribution costs HE Mo HEAAK (5,922) (3,023)
General and administrative expenses — R MITHEX (32,005) (31,730)
Loss from operations EEEE (87.251) (32,244)
Finance costs BB A AR 11 (52,585) (68,284)
Loss before tax BRELAIE B (139,836) (100,528)
Income tax expense TSR x 12 (662) =

Loss and total comprehensive income EAREEAEEERNER

for the year attributable to REHEHKZAE

the owners of the Company 13 (140,498) (100,528)
Loss per share BRER
Basic (RMB) AR (AR 16(a) (2.16) (2.24)
Diluted (RMB) e (AR 16(b) (2.16) (2.24)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
& Ot AR &

At 31 December 2022
R-F-Z—Ff-H=+4+—H

2022 2021
—E_-__ —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AREF T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BE &R E 17 168,459 189,587
Right-of-use assets CREAE 18 16,693 16,626
Investment in an associate R—REBERRMRE 19 = =
185,152 206,213
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 10,409 2,012
Trade and other receivables B 5 M H I FRIE 21 46,299 17,256
Bank and cash balances SRIT RIS 22 1,298 2,235
58,006 21,503
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 & E b T 5RI8 23 328,831 291,359
Borrowings B 24 955,030 801,492
Lease liabilities HEARE 25 213 279
Current tax liabilities BNEAfi B & & 681 -
1,284,755 1,093,130
Net current liabilities REBEETHE (1,226,749) (1,071,627)
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERABEE (1,041,597) (865,414)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION & 6 81 #& ik R &
At 31 December 2022
R-FE-——F+=-H=+—H

2022 2021
—E__ —E-—F
\[e} (=1 RMB’000 RMB'000
B = AR® T ARBEFIT
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings B 24 121,093 169,452
Lease liabilities HEaE 25 171 145
Deferred income PRIEUT A 26 12,474 12,786
133,738 182,383
Net liabilities EEFE (1,175,335) (1,047,797)
Equity &
Share capital fi% s 28 7,753 4,431
Reserves G 29 (1,183,088) (1,052,228)
Capital deficiency F% 7N &5 At (1,175,335) (1,047,797)

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on R-TZ-_ZHF A=+ AEZEZTe ALK

31 March 2023. -
Li Wanyuan Lin Yuxi
ZE T & R
Director Director
== E2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SO EEEEH R

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—F_—F+_A=+—HIFE

Share  Contributed Capital Statutory  Accumulated
capital surplus reserve reserve losses Total
& BaR4 BAGE EE R RifEE @t
(note 29(a)) (note 29(b) te 29(c))
(W7E20@)  (MFR200)  (MF29(0)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TT  AR®Tn AR¥Tn AR¥Tn ARETrn  ARETxn
At 1 January 2021 RZE=-%-A-H 3,100 667,338 113,510 24151 (1,767,386) (959,287)
Subscription of new shares under general RE-REERBTRN
mandate (notes 28(a) and 28(b)) (P 5E28(@)28(b) ) 1,331 11,028 = = = 12,359
Share issue expenses RABTRZ - (341) - - - (341)
Loss and total comprehensive income ENFRREZANELS
for the year - - - - (100,528) (100,528)
Changes in equity for the year ENERZY 1331 10,687 - - (100,528) (88,510)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022~ RZE=—4#+-A=+—H
h=Z-—%-f—H 4,431 678,025 113,510 24,151 (1,867,914) (1,047,797)
Issue of new shares under general RE-REERTHRH
mandate (notes 28(d) and 28(e)) (Fii5E28(d) R 28(e) ) 1,974 4,225 - - - 6,199
Placing of new shares under RE-REERENRG
general mandate (note 28(f)) (FEE28(h)) 1,348 5,664 - - - 7,012
Share issue expenses RBBTER - (251) - - - (251)
Loss and total comprehensive income FRABBR2AUEAE
for the year - - - - (140,498) (140,498)
Changes in equity for the year FREZED 3322 9,638 - - (140,498) (127,538)
At 31 December 2022 R-B-ZF+-A=t-H 7,153 687,663 113,510 24,151 (2,008,412) (1,175,335)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Aﬁiﬁﬁljlb '13—‘%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—FT-_—F+-_HA=+—HAUIFE

2022 2021
—E—F
Note RMB 000 RMB’000
Bt &E ARET R ARETF T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHABHRERE
Loss before tax BRELATEE (139,836) (100,528)
Adjustments for: HTIEBEELFE:
Amortisation of deferred income I RE IR A 55 (312) (312)
Depreciation of property, plant and W BEREETE
equipment 21,791 21,572
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAREENE 648 406
Finance costs B E A AR 52,585 68,284
Reversal of impairment losses of ME BEREHEZ
property, plant and equipment BB BT 1B ] - (2,888)
Impairment losses of right-of-use assets FRAREEZREEIE - 568
Gain on the termination of right-of-use RILERAREERR
assets (326) -
Impairment losses of trade receivables B 5 W IA 2R EEE 1,093 4,996
(Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment ~ E At fEUFKTE 2 CRE
losses of other receivables EEER) SREER (44) 15,094
(Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment 8 I8 2 (Rl {EEE
losses of prepayments B|) REEE (382) 2,106
Interest income B A (8) 4)
Write off of property, plant and equipment — #i$5¥ % - R &% - 1,443
Write off of inventories WETEE = 1,160
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) R EE (es) $58 68,571 (21,549)
Operating profit/(loss) before EEEAREHFILL
working capital changes S, (E5iE) 3,780 (9,652)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE (Em),md (8,397) 427
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 & E M EWFIE
other receivables (#hn) /b (29,710) 6,887
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K E A JE S R IE G hn 22,018 2,021
Cash used in operations KEFTAE S (12,309) (317)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ERHEEBENE (46) (12)
Interest paid on borrowings BB RF A (97) =
Net cash used in operating activities RETHFMAREFH (12,452) (329)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS &t R&RE &

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E_-__ —E-—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & AR®BT R AR®ETTT
Cash flow from investing activities REFEBEERE
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BER
plant and equipment HEEE (663) =
Interest received B2 R & 8 4
Net cash (used in)/generated from REES (FTAE),Frg
investing activities REFH (655) 4
Cash flow from financing activities METBMEBESRE
Repayment of borrowings BEER (338) (12,885)
Principal element of lease payments HENREEE (452) (144)
Proceeds from issue of shares BTG Fﬁ?:effk 6,199 12,359
Proceeds from placing of shares @Eﬁﬂxfﬁﬁﬁﬁfk 7,012 -
Share issue expenses A BATH X (251) (341)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEETBRE (FTA)
financing activities HEFHE 12,170 (1,011)
Net decrease in cash and ReRBESESEYRIFRE
cash equivalents (937) (1,336)
Cash and cash equivalents R—BA—HZHRE&R
at 1 January RE&ZEY 2,235 3,571
Cash and cash equivalents R+=—HA=+—-HZ2
at 31 December ReRASEEY 1,298 2,235

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERBESZEEYIN
Cash and bank balances B& MIRIT4E % 22 1,298 2,235
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Moody Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands
on 29 April 2013. On 23 May 2019, the board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”) has been de-registered in
the Cayman Islands and duly continued in Bermuda as an
exempted company under the laws of Bermuda (the “Change
of Domicile”). The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is
located at 20/F, Infinitus Plaza, 199 Des Voeux Road Central,
Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) since 25 April 2014 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Winding-up petition and appointment of the
joint and several provisional liquidators for
restructuring purpose

On 20 September 2019, the Company received a petition (the
“Petition”) from Su Dajie (the “Petitioner”), a holder of the 2%
bond and 2.5% bond in the principal amount of approximately
HK$3,000,000 and HK$3,006,000 issued by the Company on
12 April 2018 and 13 April 2018 (collectively, the “Bonds”)
respectively, in the matter of the Companies (Winding Up
and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Chapter 32, Laws of
Hong Kong) filed in the High Court of The Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (the “High Court”) under Companies
Winding-up Proceedings No. 283 of 2019, alleged that the
outstanding indebtedness owed by the Company to him up to
11 March 2019 was approximately HK$2,890,000. The winding
up petition was heard before the High Court on 20 November
2019. In connection with the Petition, the Company has
engaged professional parties to work out a restructuring plan
for the Company’s indebtedness. Such restructuring plan had
been filed to the Supreme-Court of Bermuda (the “Bermuda
Court”).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B BRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—FT-_—F+-_HA=+—HAUIFE

ARIER

MBI RO BR AR ([AAR])RZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &F

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

64

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)
Winding-up petition and appointment of the
joint and several provisional liquidators for

restructuring purpose (continued)

To facilitate the Company's financial restructuring, on
10 October 2019, a winding up petition together with an
application for the appointment (the “JPL Application”) of
Tang Chung Wah and Kan Lap Kee of Shinewing Specialist
Advisory Services Limited and Edward Alexander Niles Whittaker
of R&H Services Limited respectively was appointed as joint
and several provisional liquidators of the Company (together
“JPLs") on a light touch approach for restructuring purpose was
presented and filed with the Bermuda Court by the Company’s
Bermuda Counsel, Conyers Dill & Pearman at the request of the
Company.

Under the JPL Application, the Company sought an order
from the Bermuda Court so that the board of directors of the
Company should under the monitoring of the JPLs, continue to
manage the Company’s affairs in all respects and exercise the
powers conferred upon it by the Company’s Memorandum of
Association and Bye-laws, provided always that, the JPLs should
have the power to seek such directions from the Bermuda
Court as the JPLs are advised are appropriate to maximize the
prospects of the financial restructuring being successful and to
provide a moratorium to avoid a disorderly insolvency liquidation
of the Company and its subsidiaries by any of the creditors who
have threatened to commence liquidation proceedings.

On 5 March 2020, upon the joint application of the Petitioner
and the Company by way of the consent summons, an order
was made by the High Court that the Petition be dismissed.

Upon completion of issue of scheme shares on 4 January 2023,
the admitted claims owing by the Company to the scheme
creditors, including all amount owing by the Company to the
bondholders will be discharged and released in full.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") issued by International Accounting Standards Board
(the "IASB"). IFRSs comprise International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”); International Accounting Standards (“IAS");
and Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 4 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
amendments to IFRS to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.

GOING CONCERN BASIS

The Group incurred a loss of approximately RMB139,836,000
for the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had net
current liabilities and capital deficiency of approximately
RMB1,226,749,000 and RMB1,175,335,000 respectively as at
31 December 2022. In addition, as disclosed in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements, as at 31 December 2022, the
Group's bank borrowings of approximately RMB162,974,000
are subject to renewal or to be fully repaid within the next
twelve months, of which approximately RMB102,974,000
were overdue. Furthermore, The Group recorded net operating
cash outflow for the year ended 31 December 2022 with the
Group’s total bank and cash balance remining at a low level
of RMB1,298,000 as of 31 December 2022. These conditions
indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Therefore, the Group may be unable to realise
its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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GOING CONCERN BASIS (Continued)

Having carefully considered the liquidity and working capital
requirements for the next twelve months, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements on going concern basis.
Certain plans and measures have been or will be taken by
director of the Company to mitigate the Group's liquidity
pressure and to improve its cashflows which include, but are
not limited to, the following:

(@  The Group will negotiate with certain financial institutions,
including the existing major lenders, for options of
restructuring of the Group's existing borrowings or new
financing;

(b)  The Group will continue its ongoing efforts to convince
the lenders of the defaulted borrowing not to take any
actions against the Group for immediate payment of the
principals and interest of these borrowings;

(©)  Obtain external source of funding from potential investors
by issuance of new shares;

(d)  Upon completion of issue of scheme shares on 4 January
2023, the admitted claims owing by the Company to
the scheme creditors, including all amount owing by the
Company to the bondholders will be discharged and
released in full; and

(e)  The directors of the Company have been taking various
cost control measures to tighten the costs of operations
and implementing various strategies to enhance the
Group's revenue.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that,
considering the abovementioned plans and measures, the
Group will have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due within twelve months from 31 December 2022.
Accordingly, they are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
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GOING CONCERN BASIS (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, material uncertainties exist as
to whether the Group will be able to achieve its plans and
measures as described above. Whether the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern would depend upon the
following:

(@)  successfully securing new financing from the financial
institutions to fund its operations and financial obligations
as well as restructuring of the existing borrowings to
extend the payment schedule;

(b)  successful negotiations with the lenders of the defaulted
borrowing that they will not take any actions against
the Group to exercise their rights to demand immediate
payment of the principals and interests of these
borrowings;

(c)  successful obtain external source of funding from
potential investors by issuance of new shares; and

(d) the Group’s ability to generate operating cash flows
to meet the Group's ongoing funding needs as well
as successfully controlling operations costs and capital
expenditure.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to the consolidated
financial statements, to write down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for further liabilities which
might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively.
The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs

(a) Application of new and revised IFRSs

The IASB has issued a number of new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022. None of these developments have
had a material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods have
been prepared or presented.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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4. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED IFRSs

(Continued)
(b) New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised IFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective for the
financial year beginning 1 January 2022. These new and
revised IFRSs include the following which may be relevant
to the Group.

Amendments to IAS 1 - Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2 — Disclosure of Accounting Policies
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accounting periods
beginning on or after
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1 January 2024

—E-MF—A—H
1 January 2023
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Amendments to IAS 8 — Definition of Accounting

REEHERFER (7))

1 January 2023

Estimates -G hEHER —E-=%—H—H
Amendments to IAS 12 — Deferred Tax Related Ra et RERISE125% (185]) 1 January 2023
to Assets and Liabilities Arising from a Single -—HBERXFEENEER —TZ=f—H—H
Transaction BEABENELTTE
Amendments to IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts BB B B s 5 R 175 (183]) 1 January 2023
—REE 4 ZEZ=F—F—H
Amendments to IFRS 16 — Lease Liability PR RS R B 165 (183]) 1 January 2024
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Sale or Contribution of Assets between SEERAIE285 (1BF]) FET

an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

—REEREBENFHAENRT
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The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So
far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 6.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The
Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date the control ceases.

5.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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5.

70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company's share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill and any accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’'s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of an entity but is not control or joint control
over those policies. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or
convert that right is not considered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Associates (continued)

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested
for impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective evidence
that the investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated
to any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS
36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses and other comprehensive income is
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. When the Group's share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently
reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—FE - —F+ - HA=4+—HIFE

5. TESTTEHER@®

(b)

H?“&“D\ﬁ@)

AR NBIRE IR AERER
éﬁﬂﬁfx#ﬁﬁ’illﬁ% A % AR AR B W)
RIER - TN 2 R AN # 7R &
E&@FEEﬁWW%MEE’JE?
EFrE - WEERABHAEE DL
ﬁﬁéﬂjﬁﬁ—lu&ﬂﬁ?&fﬁﬁﬁ'}
FEE ANEEBUEEY R -ZE
EENAKRENERE TEERE
BEERRENBERERERRS
MEBHRNIEE —HETREAR -
WAEESHAHZNEEREEN
”AIF}g’rTE%E/\HﬁZﬁ%}ﬂZZIS'E'JEE@%%E
H FFTgfuiﬁgum"

A BT 65 T B R B
BRRMERTRMRAE BTE
EAEBRERN HRENH2BED

BE(ERERR)RRERSTES
MIERE—BERMARE A
i%ttfﬁ—ﬂﬁl@ B(EREESR
AFEBRHERANRSE) BEK
ETE PRV E DR BB BT & 1%
CEIBRZRERTMEN D
E’UE@%E(’E%%%%%E&EZ
?ﬁﬁquﬁl@{ﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
S 5T 2 QI 55 365 i 52 8 B OB (B B

o

AEEBSHBERRWBERESER
HtwzEbarafBEakite
EH& SRMHER - AN R E D H &
AABERERLEZRNERKZ QA
HY) 7 2R (”‘EP@%TEH,\K%W%EXZK
SERBERRKREFENREE
@) IARENSE - PHREE
H?EEEE%EE&&H&*““TH
o B R B H R HUCEF - RIA
7.<l1 \ﬁlﬁfﬁiﬁéﬂw\,\}*ﬁ“fﬁﬂi
BRNBEEREERLRENZ

%5 F o

MR ERAAERLQ T
2022 FEWRE

71



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &F

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

5.

72

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Associates (continued)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

(9]

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the company initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When
a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component of that
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Foreign currency translation (continued)
(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation currency
as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates for the period (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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5.

74

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than properties
under construction as described below), are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. The useful lives are as follows:

Buildings On the shorter of the term

of the lease, and 20 years
Machinery and equipment 10%
Office equipment and furniture 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are available
for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where
the customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

(@)

The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has elected
not to separate non-lease components and accounts
for each lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component for
all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets,
which for the Group are primarily office and factory.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of
a low-value asset, the Group decides whether to
capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The
lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability and hence are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &F

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Leases (continued)
(i) The Group as a lessee (continued)

76

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing
was received,

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a
risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk
for leases held by the Group, which does not
have recent third-party financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, such
as term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is
available to the individual lessee (through recent
financing or market data) which has a similar
payment profile to the lease, then the group entities
use that rate as a starting point to determine the
incremental borrowing rate.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Leases (continued)

()

The Group as a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there is
a change arising from the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. When
the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in
the lease contract (“lease modification”) that
is not accounted for as a separate lease. In this
case the lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification. The only exceptions are any rent
concessions which arose as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the
conditions set out in paragraph 46B of IFRS 16.
In such cases, the Group took advantage of the
practical expedient not to assess whether the rent
concessions are lease modifications, and recognised
the change in consideration as negative lease
payments in profit or loss in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &F

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

5.

78

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

()

(9)

Leases (continued)
(ii) The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines as
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of
an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

Rental income from operating lease is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight line bases over the term
of the relevant lease.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale. Costs necessary to make the sales include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and non-
incremental costs which the Group must incur to make
sale.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised
if the group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognizes the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable would
also be recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Recognition and derecognition of financial

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivable
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &F

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—FE - —Ff - H=1F—HIFFE

5.

80

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

()

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial
assets.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECL").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

0

(m)

(n)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under IFRSs. An
equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs. The accounting policies adopted for specific
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on trade
and other receivables. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade. The
ECL on these financial assets are estimated using the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well
as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date, including time value of money where appropriate.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &F

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

5.

82

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort. Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which the
Group's debtors operate, obtained from economic expert
reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant
think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group's
core operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Impairment of financial assets (continueq)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &F

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

5.

84

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

(i)  The financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i)  The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(i) Adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating of
“investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables
that meet either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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5.

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As
for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date determined based on historical trend, the
Group's understanding of the specific future financing
needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking
information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL
are no longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance
at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current
reporting date, except for assets for which simplified
approach was used.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Impairment of financial assets (continueq)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
cash flow statement. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL.

Revenue

Revenue is recognised when control over a product is
transferred to the customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Revenue from the sale of manufactured products is
recognised at a point in time when control of the goods
has transferred, being when the goods have been shipped
to the buyer's specific location (delivery). Following
delivery, the buyer has full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, has the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods
are delivered to the buyer as this represents the point
in time at which the right to consideration becomes
unconditional, as only the passage of time is required
before payment is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &F

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period. Employee entitlements
to sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised

until the time of leave.

(ij) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the

payment of termination benefits.

(r) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

(s) Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be

received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Government grants (continued)

(t)

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are
recorded as deferred income and recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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5.

90

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Related parties
For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a related party is a person or entity that is
related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or a parent of the
Company.

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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5.

92

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Related parties (continued)

(B) (Continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to a
parent of the Company.

(v) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment
and where an asset is impaired, it is written down as
an expense through the consolidated statement of
profit or loss to its estimated recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit ("CGU") to
which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal of the individual asset or the cash-generating
unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates that
reflect the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset/cash-generating unit whose impairment is being
measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused
by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to
the extent that they reverse the impairment.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

94

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
of the Company have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below).

(a) Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of which
depends upon the outcome of certain plans and measures
to improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position,
which are set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(b) Significant increase in credit risk

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month
ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage
3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition. IFRS 9
does not define what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable
forward-looking information.

(c) Property, plant and equipment used for
generating for rental income

The Group has developed certain criteria in making
judgements whether certain properties used for
generating rental income are qualified and recognised
in property, plant and equipment. Certain properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rental income, and
another portion that is held for use in the operation of
the Group's business. If portions could be sold separately
or leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group
accounts for the portions separately. The properties are
investment properties only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods.
Judgement is made in an individual property basis to
determine whether the above criteria are so significant
that property does not qualify as investment properties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
EST' MATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation
and impairment. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can
be supported by the recoverable amount; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts. Changing the assumptions and
estimates could materially affect the recoverable amounts.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2022 were
approximately RMB168,459,000 and RMB16,693,000
(2021: RMB189,587,000 and RMB16,626,000) respectively.

Impairment losses for trade and other
receivables

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables and other
receivables based on the credit risk of trade receivables
and other receivables. The amount of the impairment
loss based on ECL model is measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
Where the future cash flows are less than expected, or
being revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of trade
and other receivables is approximately RMB22,348,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
RMB1,798,000) (2021: RMB8&,801,000 (net of allowance
for doubtful debts of approximately RMB32,360,000)).

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BPR_FE - —Ff _H=1—HIFFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

6.

926

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

During the year, RMB662,000 (2021: Nil) of income tax
was charged to profit or loss based on the estimated
profit from continuing operations.

(d) Impairment losses of prepayments

The Group assesses prepayments whether there are
indicators of impairment for prepayments at the end
of each reporting period. Prepayments are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment exists when
the carrying amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs to sell and its value-in-use.
The calculation of fair value less costs to sell is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value-in-use calculations are undertaken,
management estimates the expected future cash flows
from the asset or cash-generating unit and chooses a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

The carrying amount of prepayments as at 31
December 2022 were approximately RMB12,868,000
(net of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
RMB84,855,000) (2021: RMB7,228,000 (net of allowance
for doubtful debts of approximately RMB87,038,000)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7.
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest

rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks

to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk
The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk
as some of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in the currencies other than functional
currencies of the Group entities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change
in the exchange rate of HK$, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's loss after tax due to changes in
the value of monetary assets and liabilities.

Year ended 31 December 2022 BEz=-—==—=
+TZA=+—HLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—FE-—Ff+ - H=1—HIFFZ

Bt %5 [ By 7R
K%l?&%é%ﬁﬁﬁ% BeRRAR 2%
SN R 5 B R R B IR B R A R
Bk ARBERNEEREREEREINT
ARANESEMES I “ﬁﬂ%ﬁ_@#K%
MBRANEBETNEE

(a) MR
HKEIEEE%?M\%H CEBEE
DEBRZ BEERBENEEER
IR E B SN B #EFHE -

AEEEMTERINER S BER
BEGIEIINELPEKR - AEEZY)
SR ERELOME BB - I A% 38 B E B
EARIMERRR

TERBTIEEZHBEMEETENE
AT HAEBEERBEEEZLM
EENAKERBHREBERE RSN
RETLERNAEEEZ R
o

Functional

currency
strengthened/ (Increase)/
((WEELGE D)) decrease in

by loss after tax

TheeEE iR~ MRBL &R
(R E5) (3m),mL

% RMB’000

ARBT T

5%/(5%) 45,657/(45,657)

Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_Z2—-_—F
+—BA=+—B81I&E

5%/(5%) 40,382/(40,382)

Note: This is mainly a result of foreign exchange gain/(loss) on
borrowings denominated in HK$.

BisE: by EERRB T EERAINE
Wz, (E18) Frgske
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—FE - —Ff - H=1F—HIFFE

7.

98

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet
its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities of trade and
other receivables and bank balances. The Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from bank balances
is limited because the counterparties are banks and
financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

The Group has no concentration of credit risk.

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group's established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 90
days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances that
are more than 30 days past due are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from
customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. As the Group's
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is
not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.

MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BPR_FE - —Ff _H=1—HIFFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 7. MBERERE@®
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) %Eaﬁﬁ (8)
The following table provides information about the TRREHEBAASEMEYENES
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECL for trade BWREZEERRLBHEEE
receivables: BEK:

2022

—E-=

Gross
Expected carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance
AHERER REAE EERE
RMB’000 RMB’000

% AR®TR AR%¥TrR

Current (not past due) BIEA (R#HR) 0.04% 15,388 6
Less than 3 months past due AHIDRA3ME A 2.4% 170 4
Over 3 months but less than ) HAB 3R A 18 2 efE A
6 months past due - - -
Over 6 months but less than 8 BB 6 (R A 18 2 R9fE A
9 months past due 58.5% 822 481
16,380 491

2021
—E-—4F
Gross
Expected carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance
TBHEE X REAE BERE
RMB'000 RMB'000

% ARBTT ARETRT

Less than 3 months past due BEIDR3MEA 2.2% 1,373 30
Over 3 months but less than B AR R B3 1A A 1B A R6fE A
6 months past due 22% 370 8
Over 6 months but less than B ER R R (A A 1B A R9fE A
9 months past due 24.6% 443 109
2,186 147
Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience. TEEBEREERNERERLRAE -
The above expected loss rates are adjusted to reflect FHFEHIBEERTERAE LR
differences between economic conditions during the S E S EUR B A AOBE AR - B BIAK
period over which the historic data has been collected, SUA R R SR B E 5 e WK IR 6 8 A
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic FHRREERRA BENER-

conditions over the expected lives of the trade receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 7. MBEARER@®
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) %E@@ (#%5)
Movement in the loss allowance for trade receivables FTRNEZRERUFAEBERZREEZH N
during the year is as follows: I

2022 2021
—E_C —EF - —4F

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTIT

At 1 January n—HA—H 147 816,358
Impairment losses recognised FRERRRESE
for the year 1,093 4,996
Write off 88 (749) (821,207)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—AH 491 147
For other receivables, the Group recognises lifetime ECL MEMERFIEMS ~AEBEREFE
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk &5 18 B 1) 1R TR 3R B K 1R 12 00 B T R
since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on FHTEAEEBE - Am  WEAE
the other receivables has not increased significantly since WHIEREERR B 76 EREN
initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance mARER AEEARET—EA
for the other receivables at an amount equal to 12-month EHEEEEESNeETEAM
ECL. JE SRR T HY S PR A o
The following table provides information about the TEREHRBEBEASEMEY 2EE
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECL for other [B B B L ZE G 0 2 H A R YR IE 2
receivables which has significant increase in the credit risk: FEERBREREEBEEHNT
2022
—®-=
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHEEE AREAE EERAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
Internal credit rating W E R % AR®TR AR%¥TR
Stage 1 F—IEE 0.5% 4,126 20
Stage 2 FIEER 2.2% 2,399 52
Stage 3 F=PEE 14.3% 7 1
Default EQ 100% 1,234 1,234
7,766 1,307
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
o —

T FF+HA=+—HIFFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continvec) 7. BBERERE@®
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) %E@Fﬁ (80
2021
T4
Gross

Expected carrying Loss

loss rate amount allowance

HHEEE EERE

RMB'000 RMB'000

Internal credit rating REBEE TR % AREBFIT ARETT
Stage 1 E—IEE 0.1% 6,208 6
Stage 2 BIEER 2.2% 569 12

Stage 3 B=FEER 24.6% 4 1
Default ) 100% 32,19 32,194
38,975 32,213
The above expected loss rates are adjusted to reflect LMTEEAE R R D E - AR
differences between economic conditions during the SELERMENLBEMR - B Ak
period over which the historic data has been collected, U LA Be 7R 65 [ L B R IE R TR
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic HMERBRSERRN ZBENER

conditions over the expected lives of the other receivables.

Movement in the loss allowance for other receivables FAEMEKRIEEERESZHOT

during the year is as follows:

2022 2021

—E—-— —E - —F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR® T ARET T

At 1 January n—H—H 32,213 32,230
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ FACHER CREEERER),/

impairment losses recognised IEEE

for the year (44) 15,094

Write off s (30,862) (15,111)

At 31 December R+=—A=t+—H 1,307 32,213

RN BEROGERALA
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(9]

102

Interest rate risk
The Group's bonds bear interests at fixed interest rates
and therefore are subject to fair value interest rate risks.

The Group's exposure to cash flow interest-rate risk arises
from its bank deposits and bank borrowings. The bank
deposits and bank borrowings bear interests at variable
rates that vary with the then prevailing market condition.

Except as stated above, the Group does not have other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities at the
end of reporting period, its income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variable held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax.

For the year ended BE-_E-_—F

7.

B R b BB
(0 F=mb

AEEZEFRETEMNERFTE WA
EERNTENRERE -

AEEMAERS RN ERRIRE
HRTERRBITER - RITERR
RITERRFBDMNEAE BEER

BiTmAmBRmE-
B bt 5 5 - AN 52 [ 70 R 45 HA R 3 B

HEAHREERAM HWAR
BEREHRBRADS TE TS X

Blye-

TRBTERHANE B TE
SR T - A 5 B H0 B B B 1B
) 2 TR IE B B BB -

(Increase)/
decrease in
loss before tax
RREBE A& 1B
CR4)  (&m) m
% RMB’000
AR® T

Increase/
(decrease) in
interest rate

F=igm,

31 December 2022 +ZBA=+—HLEEE 1%/(1%) (1,617)/1,617
For the year ended HE-_T-—F
31 December 2021 +=—A=+—HItFE 1%/(1%)  (1,611)/1,611
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—FE-—Ff+ - H=1—HIFFZ

MR ERE@®
(d) FEh1H R b

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 7.
(d) Liquidity risk

The Group’'s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting period of the
Group’s financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay.

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities
is as follows:

AEBBER A ERE TN R EY
RBESER UBEREERFTER
cREBAMEEEARRYENRS

TRIIFAEEEREBRERS
PREAMRARGRE (BRERA
HMMERGFER (MBFHN )R
EEHRTHNEFENRE MK
RAKEAREEERNRANKER
M ENRBANES-

AEEFETESRABRAOREY
RRERENIABROFTOT

On demand
or less than 1to02 2to5 Over
1 year years years 5 years Total
—FR —EWF MERE EEUE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT AR¥Tz ARBTr AR%®Trn AR¥Txn
31 December 2022 ZE-ZE+ZA=t-H
Trade and other payables 5 RHEtESE 328,831 - - - 328,831
Borrowings EES 959,037 36,748 87,193 23,742 1,106,720
Lease liabilities HERE 232 177 - - 409
31 December 2021 —E-—%+-A=+-H
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMNTKE 280,446 - - - 280,446
Borrowings TN 805,771 70,124 104,503 33,795 1,014,193
Lease liabilities HERE 294 147 = = 441
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 7. BRERREE@®
(e) Categories of financial instruments at e) R+tT-A=+—Hz€®mIA
31 December Bl

2022 2021
—E_—— —EF - —4F

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTIT

Financial assets: EMEE:

Financial assets at amortised cost REHEK AT ENESMEE 34,729 12,263

Financial liabilities: EWMEE:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEHEK AT ENESRERE 1,405,338 1,251,814

(f) Fair values f 2AFE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets EHMBRARARAEESFHE
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated F&imﬁ%f MEEMEBEHEEZAH
statement of financial position approximate their NEEEE

respective fair values.

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. ZHER
For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group BHE-_ZE_—_fR-_ZF-—F+=A
has two reportable segments as follows: —t+—HALEFE -AEEBEATRENZ

o Eb

- Sales of fabrics; and — EHHEE: R
—  Sales of shoes, clothes and others — EE REIHMBEE
The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units LKE ENA2mo B RRHEEED Y
that offer different products. The directors of Company, being Eﬁk%i‘ﬁlﬁf EEB’\\%%W?%%EZ—H E0E5T
the chief operating decision maker, managed the operating MMREHEKRE WARAES(NEEL
segments separately because each business requires different EIOREK %‘)Xﬁﬁi BIERENE -

technology and marketing strategies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—FE-—Ff+ - H=1—HIFFZ

o EE R @

GRS EH T RS G BRENE
SET it > & 5 E M - 9 2018 26 T2 15
Hipdg A - (B518) K HE e
B — B RITHE S REERA -
SHMEAETEFERERDE R — %L

NRANRENUNRRITRREEHR DA

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profit or loss do not include other income,
net foreign exchange (losses)/gains, selling and distribution
costs, general and administrative expenses and finance costs.
Segment assets do not include lease office, investment in an

associate and bank and cash balances. Segment liabilities do

not include lease liabilities, borrowings and current tax liabilities.

BETERHEAE ERLAYREARE

Shoes,
clothes
Fabrics and others Total
HE BRER
R Hot st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥®TrT AR%¥TrR AR%Txn
Segment results DEEE
Year ended 31 December 2022: BE-_T_-__%

Reportable revenue from external

+TZA=+—-HLEEE:
REINPEF R 2HREE

customers 23,695 66,849 90,544
Reportable segment (loss)/profit 2R (EE), B (198) 6,927 6,729
Other income H A A 2,130
Net foreign exchange losses BE 5 B 18)% E (58,183)
Selling and distribution costs HE R HEEA (5,922)
General and administrative expenses —MRRITEAX (32,005)
Finance costs BE AR (52,585)
Loss before tax B 750 Al S 48 (139,836)
Other segment items Hiv o HEE
Depreciation of property, ME BEREENE

plant and equipment 21,785 6 21,791
Depreciation on right-of-use assets EREEENE 406 242 648
Gain on the termination of right-of-use BRI REEERR

assets (326) - (326)
Impairment losses of trade receivables B2 EWHIE 2 REBE 1,087 6 1,093
(Reversal of impairment losses)/ HupWaay CREsERE),/

impairment losses of other receivables REEE (147) 103 (44)
Reversal of impairment losses of R HIE 2 REE R

prepayments (382) - (382)

mMEBEROSBRLQF
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. AHERmW

Shoes,

clothes

Fabrics and others
EE RER

i HAth
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTR

Segment results DEEE
Year ended 31 December 2021: BE-Z-_—F
+ZA=+—HIEE:

RI\/IB"OO
ARBTT

Reportable revenue from external REAINBE P A 2 M

customers 29,896 125,645 155,541
Reportable segment (loss)/profit A2HoHE (B8) & F (20,156) 1,587 (18,569)
Other income HAw g A 3,969
Net foreign exchange gain i H s F R 17,109
Selling and distribution costs HE R DA (3,023)
General and administrative expenses —#% & 77 B 2 (31,730)
Finance costs A& KA (68,284)
Loss before tax B 15 Al 5 45 (100,528)
Other segment items HpmHBEA
Depreciation of property, ME - BRERRBITE

plant and equipment 21,428 144 21,572
Depreciation on right-of-use assets A& EITE 406 = 406
Impairment losses of trade receivables & 5 & W I8 2 5 (E &5 18 4,996 = 4,996
Impairment losses of other receivables £ ftf & I I8 2 5 (B &5 18 13,961 1,133 15,094
Impairment losses of prepayments  F&{ 5018 2 REE 1B 2,106 = 2,106
Reversal of impairment losses of ME  BRERREBZRE

property, plant and equipment 518 & o] (2,8898) = (2,888)
Write off of property, MEEYE - WE

plant and equipment R = 1,443 1,443
Write off of inventories WEFEE = 1,160 1,160
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3t Bt I8 sk R M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BPR_FE - —Ff _H=1—HIFFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7WER @
Shoes,
clothes
Fabrics and others Total
HE RER
[k Hit #et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥Tn AR¥Tn AR%ETxn
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERERE
At 31 December 2022: N-E-—F
+=ZA=+—8:
Segment assets DEEE 201,187 40,200 241,387
Unallocated assets Ao EE 1,771
Total assets EEMEE 243,158
Segment liabilities PEEE 305,859 35,446 341,305
Unallocated liabilities Ao EE 1,077,188
Total liabilities BEHEE 1,418,493

Shoes,
clothes
Fabrics and others
HE RER
[Eige HAl
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Segment assets and liabilities PWEERERE
At 31 December 2021: RZB=-—F
+=A=+—-8:
Segment assets DEBEE 220,145 5,336 225,481
Unallocated assets ADEE 2,235
Total assets BEEHE 227,716
Segment liabilities PEEE 304,132 13 304,145
Unallocated liabilities ADEBE 971,368
Total liabilities BEHAHE 1,275,513
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3t Bt I8 sk R M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information
The Group's revenue from external customers by location of
operations are detailed below:

7 2B E B ®

i & & R

6 R 8 0 R U A6 IR S B B
T

2022 2021

—E_C —E-—4F

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR® T ARET T

The People’s republic of China (the “PRC") FZEARLFME ([FEH]) 59,076 29,896
Korea 450 31,468 95,541
The United States x£H = 5,079
Japan HAR = 16,678
Others HAith = 8,347
90,544 155,541

Over 90% of the Group's non-current assets (excluding
investment in an associate) are located in the PRC. Accordingly,
no further geographical information of non-current assets to be
disclosed.

Revenue from major customers

One (2021: Nil) customer of the Group's business segment
of shoes, clothes and others who contributed revenue of
approximately RMB11,688,000 (2021: Nil) which exceed 10%
of the Group’s total revenue.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregation of net amounts received
and receivable during the year. An analysis of the Group’s
revenue for the year is as follows:

HBIBIONNAKEERBEE (TRAER
—BEBERRNRE) NP E - Fit - 85
BIERBDEEMNHMMIBENETHRE -

REFEEFHKE

AEEEHE RERHOERS> TN —F
(ZEBEZ—F D)BEFEBMKREHARE
11,688,0007T (T - —F:F) (f A&
B 10% A ko

Uy 2
WatE F R W R EWIRF BB -
REBENFAREONET

Contracts with customers recognised at
a point in time within the scope of

£ BIFR B 5 i 5 E R
R HEERZ

2022 AOYA
—E== —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETIT
1558 S8 1A
F&#:

IFRS 15:
Sales of fabrics RSNk 23,695 29,896
Sales of shoes, clothes and others HE REMEMEE 66,849 125,645
90,544 155,541
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

For the year ended 31 December 2022
P _ECCFEF A=+ —HIFFE

10. OTHER INCOME 10. HEE A

2022 2021
—E__ —EF - —F

— e

RMB’000
AREET T

RMB’000
AR®T T

B G E A B R R R R R AT

Amortisation of deferred income of

government grants relating to WA B (MtaE@))
assets (note (a)) 312 312
Gain on the termination of BRIEEAREEENE
right-of-use assets 326 -
Interest income FEHA 8 4
Rental income He WA 1,460 760
Reversals of impairment losses of property, ¥1% /= & & 2
plant and equipment REE R D - 2,888
Others HA 24 5
2,130 3,969
Note: B 5
(@)  Local government grants were granted to a subsidiary of the (@ AEE-HWBEATEZEHBFNETZIA

Group. Subsidies of the leasehold land and right-of-use assets
in prior year was recognised as deferred income as detail in
note 26. There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies

WA BETFEHELHMREREEEY
HEREC R RBERERA (FEFE2H
B 5E26) 5% S5 IR b 0 8 B 7 1 R FB 77

attached to these government grants. R SRS AR IE -
11. FINANCE COSTS 1. BERF

2022 2021
—E_-= —E-—14F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETT
Interest expenses on bank borrowings HRITIEFAF S X 15,551 15,810
Interest expenses on bonds BHEHNFERX 36,988 52,462
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBGENHERAX 46 12
52,585 68,284

RN BEROGERALA
2022 ifg‘;&% 109



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3t Bt I8 sk R M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense has been recognised in profit or loss as

12. IR

ERERERNAERAET:

follows:

2022 PAOYA
—E_-— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT AREET T

Current tax — Provision for the year BV AR TR (N

— PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“PRC EIT")  —FREMEFRSH
([PEEEMRER]) 18 =

Under-provision in prior years BEFERENR

— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BENEN 644 -
662 -

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax are required since the
Group has no assessable profit for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil).

For the Group's subsidiaries established and operated in the PRC
are subject to PRC EIT at the rate of 25% for both years. No
provision for PRC EIT since the Group has no assessable profit
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the loss
before tax is as follows:

ERAEBREBEZE-_T-_—_F+ = A
Tt BULFETEEZRHEEN WA
EREBHNEREHBEE (2 =—F:
/) o

AEERPBEKYRELNOHB RN
B EAER2S%NHEHANTRLERR
GHR-BIRAEERBE_T - —F+=
A=+t—RIEFETERRB G I
BEPECERMAEHEE-

PrEHAX KRB ENEERNT

2022 2021
—_=-= —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T AREETTT
Loss before tax PR AT ES 1R (139,836) (100,528)
Notional tax on loss before tax, MRERIEBE s RERIE
calculated at the rates applicable AR B REERRD
in the tax jurisdictions concerned BHRMEAE (26,088) (20,816)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable PNERBRUWA RTINS 2
and expenses that are not deductible MG & 19,243 10,968
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRIBERE HBZE 6,701 6,749
Tax effect of temporary differences in RERBELEFIBEERBERE
relating to impairment losses provision BB EETRMEEE BB
for which no deferred tax assets was g
recognised 162 3,099
Under-provision in prior year BEFERENE 644 -
Income tax expense 8= 662 =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

The Group's loss for the year is arrived at after charging/
(crediting) the following:

Auditor's remuneration
Cost of inventories sold
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains)
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets
Impairment losses of right-of-use assets
Impairment losses of trade receivables

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—FE-—Ff+ - H=1—HIFFZ

13. FAEE
AEEMERNBRESNSR, (5 A) T35
HEEEE:

(Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment EH b &I k18 7 CREEE#E )

losses of other receivables

(Reversal of impairment losses)/impairment F& 178 2 (B {EEE#E @)

losses of prepayments
Reversal of impairment losses of
property, plant and equipment
Expenses relating to short-term lease
(included in cost of sales and general
and administrative expenses)

Write off of property, plant and equipment #fl 8547 % - B &= K& &% -

Write off of inventories

Staff costs (including directors’
emoluments)

— Salaries and allowances

— Retirement benefit scheme contributions

2022 2021
—E—-— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE TR ARETTT
1% BRI %57 B 842 788
BEEHFEKAR 58,947 145,161
W BEREEITE
21,791 21,572
FREEENE 648 406
fE R EE, () FH 58,183 (17,109)
BItFREEENRS (326) =
FREEEREBESE - 568
S EWGIE 2 REEE 1,093 4,996
JOREEE (44) 15,094
JSOREEE (382) 2,106
W E REE
REEERE - (2,888)
EERPHEENRY
(BT ASHE A K
—REITHERAX) 10 227
1,443
MEHFE - 1,160
BIXA (BEESHE)
— e KRR 9,482 4,860
—IRREFET B K 1,173 30
10,655 4,890

Note: Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, depreciation

of right-of-use assets and staff costs of approximately
RMB3,818,000, RMB21,000 and RMB3,861,000 (2021:
RMB3,813,000, Nil and RMB2,130,000) were included in the

cost of sales.

Wik: WE-BEERSKEBINE FHAEEEN
ENRBEIHAH ARE3,818,0007T
AR #21,0007T & A R #3,861,0007T
(ZZ=——%F: AR¥3,813,000 &
& AR ¥2,130,0007T) B 5T A &K
o

MR ERAAERLQ T
2022 FEWRE

111



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3t Bt I8 sk R M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
P ECCFEf =+ —HIFFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

14. EET/A RER

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section RIEEE QAN E383(1)IKH 5
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as MESMamT:
follows:
2022 2021
—EFE_-_= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARETIT
Fees e 218 211
Other emoluments H A&
Salaries and allowances e MoERL 516 796
Retirement benefit scheme R FET &I
contributions 26 15
542 811
760 1,022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3t Bt I8 sk R M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BPR_FE - —Ff _H=1—HIFFE

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 14. EE5FEf K fEm @

(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) EEME w

Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total

BRBEA
e HeREE  HEEX st
Notes ~ RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
M ARMTR ARBTR AR®TR ARETx

31 December 2022 —R--#+tZA=+-H

Executive directors HTES

Mr. Li Wanyuan FETEE - 310 16 326

Ms. Lin Yuxi MBELL - 206 10 216

Independent non-executive ~ BIUFHTEES

directors

Mr. Chow Yun Cheung BARELE 134 - - 134

Mr. Lin Yugang WFRI% & 43 - - 43

Mr. Liu Junting BRELE 4 - - 4
218 516 26 760

31 December 2021 —2--#+t-A=+-H

Executive directors HTES

Mr. Lin Guogin MBI 4 (i = 548 12 560

Mr. Li Wanyuan FETEE (i) = 49 3 52

Ms. Lin Yuxi MERLL - 199 - 199

Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES

directors

Mr. Chow Yun Cheung ARELE 129 = = 129

Mr. Lin Yugang WFRI%E 42 = = 4

Mr. Liu Junting 3 40 - - 40
211 796 15 1,022

RN BEROGERALA
2022 ifg‘;&% 113



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & {3 Bt #% $f R M &%
For the year ended 31 December 2022
FCECCF =+ —HIFFE

s — g —

14. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

114

Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Notes:

(i) Resigned as an executive director with effect from
22 October 2021.

(i) Appointed as an executive director with effect from
22 October 2021.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emolument during the year (2021:
Nil).

During the year, no emolument has been paid to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group; or as compensation for loss of office (2021: Nil).

There was no discretionary bonus paid or payable to any
of the directors during the year (2021: Nil).

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company
and subsidiaries.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

Save for disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transaction, arrangement and
contract in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’s connected party had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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14. EE/A R ED @

(a)

(b)

EEMEw
BT -

() BZZ-—F+A-+t-AREE
WiTES-

(i) BZZE-—F+A-+t-RAREZ
TRHWITES-

RERN MEEENEXRBRES
ez LB (ZF_—F &) -

RER BENERME TEEE
AT SN S B K A K & B E
MEBXIERRIREE (ZF=—
FE|E)-

RER BEMEFNES N REN
EAREEL(ZTZ—F :]&) -
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NARASEERE B RSN
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REEEARAEMBAREEX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

15. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the
year included two (2021: three) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2021: two) individual are set out below:

15.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—FE-—Ff+ - H=1—HIFFZ

TEESFMAL

RERN AEEBREZESHMALTREER
H(ZEZ—F ZR)EF EFHB =
EAEHTERERMT 14RO DT H - &4
R (ZEZ—F - WMB)ALHHH®M
T

2022 2021

—E—-— —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE TR ARET T

Salaries and allowances e MoERL 1,527 802
Retirement benefit scheme contributions iR K4EF 5t 2 2k 35 15
1,562 817

The number of non-directors, highest paid employees, whose
emoluments fell within the following bands, is as follows:

FN T TV SEBEMNIEEERSHHA
TE®EBEWMT:

Nil to RMB1,000,000 Tz AR#1,000,0007T

During the year, no emolument has been paid to these
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group;
or as compensation for loss of office (2021: Nil).

There was no discretionary bonus paid or payable to any of the
highest paid employees during the year (2021: Nil).

RER AEEVEAZFEALNME
NERBEMBR MBS B R K
EABBHE (ZS=—F &)

RER BERTHNESHHES %
JEMAEMBBEL (- —F &)

MR ERAAERLQ T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3t Bt I8 sk R M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

16. LOSS PER SHARE 16. BIREE
(a) Basic loss per share (a) BREAERE
The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the BRAXNBEDREATERGE
following:

2022 AOYA
—EFE_-_= —EF - —F

— e

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTIT

Loss for the year attributable to owners & SR EAREIBTAZ
of the Company used in the basic RAGRHER ABGENEE
loss per share calculation (140,498) (100,528)

Number of shares

RH#E

2022

—ZEg=-=

Weighted average number of ordinary st EE&REREEHAZ

shares in issue during the year used FADBITLER
in basic loss per share calculation hnige 15 £ 65,139,040 44,808,194
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) BREEEE
Diluted loss per share is same as the basis loss per share HRARBIRBE_T__FK=
as the Company did not have any dilutive potential E-_—F+-_A=+—BItMEAF
ordinary share during the two years ended 31 December EMEEAEEE S ERR UK
2022 and 2021. BEFEREgREAXNEEMRR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2022
P _ECCFEF A=+ —HIFFE

17. ¥ -BERRE

Office
Machinery  equipment
and and Motor Construction
Buildings  equipment furniture vehicles  in progress Total
BAERE
BEY HERRE k& BH EEIR b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
SN AREFTT  ARETR AREFT
Cost RA&
At 1 January 2021 RZE=Z-F-A—H 241,925 209,399 81 689 1518 454,38
Write off iz = (93,019 (39) (530) - (93,588)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZB=-+ZR=+-H
k-F--%-f-H 241,925 116,380 172 159 1,518 360,754
Additions B - 182 39 - 442 663
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZ#+ZB=+-H 241,925 116,562 811 159 1,960 361,417
Accumulated depreciation and impairment RARERAE
At 1 January 2021 WZ_E-—F—-f-H 68,947 174,226 779 676 - 244,628
Charge for the year ERTH 10,955 10,617 = = = 21572
Write off i3 = (91,576) (39) (530) - (92,145)
Reversal of impairment losses REBEEE - (2,888) - - - (2,889)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 +-A=+-AH
k-E--%-f-H 79,902 90,379 740 146 = 171,167
Charge for the year FRXM 10,955 10,822 14 - - 21,791
At 31 December 2022 R-E--%+-A=1+-8 90,857 101,201 754 146 - 192,958
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2022 R-B--%+-A=1+-8 151,068 15,361 57 13 1,960 168,459
At 31 December 2021 RZZ--F+-A=+-A 162,023 26,001 2 13 1,518 189,587

MR ERAAERLQ T
2022 FEWRE

117



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &F

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ontneesy  17. Y1 ¥ -BERFZE @

118

As at 31 December 2022, buildings of the Group with
carrying amount of approximately RMB129,897,000 (2021:
RMB138,903,000) and machinery and equipment of the Group
with carrying amount of approximately RMB1,266,000 (2021:
RMB5,137,000) were pledged as collateral for certain bank
borrowings of the Group (note 24).

The Group has carried out a review of the recoverable amount
of its property, plant and equipment as at 31 December
2022 and 2021 with reference to the valuation performed by
an independent valuer, Peak Vision Appraisals Limited. The
recoverable amount is assessed based on fair value less cost
of disposal by using depreciated replacement cost approach
which involves observable and unobservable inputs, including
replacement cost, estimated useful life and residual value, under
level 3 fair value measurement. During the two years, there
were no change in the valuation techniques used.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no impairment
losses (2021: reversal of impairment losses of approximately
RMB2,888,000) was recognised in the profit or loss in respect
of property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3t Bt I8 sk R M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
P _ECCFEF A=+ —HIFFE

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. FREEE

Leasehold
land and land Lease
use right office Total

HET#HR

TwfEARE  HERLE At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®Trn AR®TR

At 1 January 2021 RZZE=Z—4F—H—H 17,032 - 17,032
Additions NE - 568 568
Depreciation e (406) - (406)
Impairment losses WEBE > (568) (568)
At 31 December 2021 and RZEZ—+ZA=+—HK
1 January 2022 —E--%—HF—H 16,626 - 16,626
Additions wE - 715 715
Depreciation wE (406) (242) (648)
At 31 December 2022 R-B--%+=-A=+-H 16,220 473 16,693
As at 31 December 2022, leasehold land of the Group with RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H AEEK
carrying amount of approximately RMB16,220,000 (2021: HEAN A AR16,220,000T (ZF = —
RMB16,626,000) were pledged as collateral for certain bank F£:AR%16,626,000c) WA E+HE
borrowings of the Group (note 24). EIREREBE THRITEROER R (W
#£24) °
Lease liabilities of approximately RMB384,000 (2021: R—BE-_—_F+-_A=+—HB HES&
RMB424,000) are recognised with right-of-use assets of BHARE384,000c (2= —F: A
approximately RMB473,000 (2021: Nil) as at 31 December E#424,0000) RERAEEENDARYK
2022. 473,000 (ZF - —F  E\)HER-

2022 2021
- —E—F

=

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTIT

Depreciation expenses of right-of-use assets ~ {F AEEEINER X 648 406
Expenses relating to short-term lease EHAEHEENRX

(included in cost of sales and (FFASHERA K

general and administrative expenses) —RRITBEX) 10 227
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBGBEMERZ 46 12
Gain on the termination of BRI AREEEN S

right-of-use assets (326) -
Impairment losses of right-of-use assets FAEEEREBESE - 568
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

18. RIGHT‘OF'USE ASSETS (Continued) 18. EFH*EEE (#&)

The Group leases offices and factory for its operations. Lease
contracts are entered into for fixed term of two to four
years (2021: two years). Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

The Group has carried out a review of the recoverable amounts
of its lease office as at 31 December 2021 and as result of
recognised impairment losses of approximately RMB568,000.
The recoverable amounts of the lease office have been
determined on the basis of their value in use of the cash
generating unit ("CGU") using discounted cash flow method.
The key assumptions for the discounted cash flow method
are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and
budgeted gross margin and turnover during the period. The
Group estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rates are based on
long-term average economic growth rate of the geographical
area in which the businesses of the CGU operate. Budgeted
gross margin and turnover are based on past practices and
expectations on market development.

The cash flow projections, growth rates and discount rate
have been assessed as at 31 December 2021 taking into
consideration higher degree of estimation uncertainties in the
current year due to how the COVID-19 pandemic may progress
and evolve and volatility in financial markets. The Group
prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five
years with the residual period. The Company did not consider
any growth rate in the most recent financial budgets.

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings where
its manufacturing facilities are primarily located and office
buildings. The Group is the registered owner of these property
interests, including the underlying leasehold land. Lump
sum payments were made upfront to acquire these property
interests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

The Group has carried out a review of the recoverable amount
of its leasehold land as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 with
reference to the valuation performed by an independent
valuer, Peak Vision Appraisals Limited. The recoverable amount
is assessed based on fair value less cost of disposal by using
direct comparison approach which involves observable and
unobservable inputs, including market price per square, under
level 3 fair value measurement. During the two years, there were
no change in the valuation techniques used.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no impairment of
leasehold land was made, as its recoverable amount was higher
than its carrying amount as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

19. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE
Investment in an associate

18.

19.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
P _ECCFEF A=+ —HIFFE

FERAEEE @
AEECL2EBUGEMSEIEERA
AETHNGME BEHER - —FR-F
——#+-A=+-AMAE TR
EeE-ANELEERE - RAFENS
THEELEE S RABRRTTEHES
ABE BESFHKTE) LA TER
BB A A RS o AR - B (8 R A £ 1
B il s o

BE-_ZE-_—_F#+-A=+—8B1LtFE"
ARHELTHMAIRESESRER S
——F+-A=t+—BzEEE At
HHEELIEERE(ZS - —F ) -

R—EBREQXTNER
R—EBEQXTANRE

2022 2021
—E_-= —E-—14F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARET T

Unlisted investments: FEEMERE:
Share of net assets DIEEEFE = =
Goodwilll EES 60,909 60,909
60,909 60,909
Impairment loss BIEEE (60,909) (60,909)

Details of the Group’s associate at 31 December 2022 and 2021
are as follows:

Issued and
paid up capital
BERTRBZRE

Place of
incorporation

AL AR 3

—E-Z

REBR-_S-_—FR-_FT-—F+=
A=+—BHBERRFBENOT:

Percentage
of ownership interest

Principal activities
and place of operation

FRERERERIL

2022 2021

—E-—fF

Baixin (China) Co., Limited The PRC RMB100,000,000

BE (RE)BRAF FE AE#100,000,0007T

50% 50% Manufacturing and sales of yarn
and cotton fabric, the PRC

BERHEY R R AL

The associate suspended the production during the year ended
31 December 2018. All assets were fully impaired.

BEARRHE "S- \E+-H=+—
B EEE-fAAECERERE:

MR ERAAERLQ T
2022 FEWRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
P ECCFEf =+ —HIFFE

20. INVENTORIES 20. &

2022 2021
—=E—_— —E-—4F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTIT

Raw materials VYRS 2,797 -
Work-in-progress £ &5 896 =
Finished goods BIRK Gh 6,716 2,012
10,409 2,012

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. ESRHEHMEWFIE

2022 2021

—E-=

RMB’000
AR T

—E-—F
RMB'000
AREFIT

Z S EBGIE (Hi5E21()) 16,380 2,186
B E S WGBS

Trade receivables (note 21(a))
Less: Allowance for trade receivables

(note 21(a)) (FFEE21(a)) (491) (147)
15,889 2,039

Prepayments (note 21(b)) TERTFRIE (FF5E21(b)) 97,723 94,266
Less: Allowance for prepayments (note 21(b)) J : T8~ R IB Y B4 (M 3E21(b) ) (84,855) (87,038)
12,868 7,228

Other receivables (note 21(b)) Hh FE UK IR (B EE21(b)) 7,766 38,975

R, + L Ath B WK R O B

Less: Allowance for other receivables

(note 21(b)) (MI=E21(b)) (1,307) (32,213)
6,459 6,762

Deposits e 11,083 1,227
46,299 17,256

1 2 2 MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(a) Trade receivables

The Group’s trading terms customers are mainly on credit.
The credit terms generally 90 days (2021: 90 days). Each
customer has a maximum credit limit. For new customers,
payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the directors.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—FE-—Ff+ - H=1—HIFFZ

21. ES R HMEWRKIE @®
(a) EZEWRFE

AEERESZESERTBUE
BHRET - EEH—MA908 (=
T-—:900) BREFRAR
SREERE-RFEFMS KRR
HERBAMNR  AEERHBRISE
BREERENKE - EETHENS
HR 4 64 o

BHRWFE (BINGRBE) RER
BHZREDTNT

2022 2021

—E—-= —E-—1F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR% T ARETIT

Within 1 month 1MEA A 15,196 =
Over 1 month but less than 3 months 118 A A H{B 31 A 186 =
Over 3 months but less than 6 months  3{& A LA _E{B A 76fE A 166 1,343
Over 6 months but less than 9 months 618 A A {891 A - 362
Over 9 months but less than 12 months 9 A A {87 121E A 341 334
15,889 2,039

As of 31 December 2022, trade receivables of
approximately RMB507,000 (2021: RMB2,039,000) were
past due but not impaired. These trade receivables related
to customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

RZEBEZZF+=ZA=+—H B85
FERFRIB 4 A R #507,0000C (=&
——4: AR¥2,039,0007T) & 1 Hf
BRBE - ZEE S EWGKIAE T
WEENCHENELPER-

MR ERAAERLQ T
2022 FEWRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3t Bt I8 sk R M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
P ECCFEf =+ —HIFFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a) Trade receivables (continued)
The Group does not charge interest or hold any collateral
over these balances.

The Group applied simplified approach to provide the ECL
as prescribed by IFRS 9. The impairment methodology is
set out in notes 5(n) and 7(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021 are set out in note 7(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

(b) Prepayments:
Included in impairment amounted to approximately
HK$382,000 was fully impaired in previous year and has
been recovered during the year.

22. BANK AND CASH BALANCES

22. SRITRB S &

21. E5 K H b B WA @

(a) EZEWFIEmw
NEE W E %S A WEF B sk
BEETAEER-

AEE KRBT AR BRE TG &
SREAFER R ENIRENEES
B BETAERN A G B B RRME
5(n)&7(b) °

BE_S_—_FR-_FE-_—F+=
A=+—ALtFE BSREMER
HREREFENFBINE B
wMERMEET (D) ©

(b) FEfTRIE:
=t AR E B 35X T8 49382,0008 7T 2 R
FEERERE T RERYRE -

2022

2021

—E=-= —E-—14F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARET R ARETIT

RMB AREE 531 396
usD ETT 475 1,569
HK$ BT 292 270
1,298 2,235

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations. However, under the PRC's Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & Bt #5 $k R M &%
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BPR_FE - —Ff _H=1—HIFFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. EFZ R EMENFIE

2022 2021
—E__ —EF - —4F

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET ARBTIT

Trade payables (note 23(a)) B 5 A FIE (3E23G)) 91,468 82,672
Contract liabilities (note 23(b)) ARBE (H:E230)) 3 10,913
Payables for purchases of property, BEWE WE REHEEMRIE
plant and equipment 35,608 35,608
Salary payables JE 1< 5 B 25,792 23,943
Interest payables FEATFIE 101,883 86,429
Other payables and accruals HMENZIERETEA 74,080 51,794
328,831 291,359
(a) Trade payables (a) EZEMNKE
An ageing analysis of trade payables at the end of the RMERRBRBERZEARNESE
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: NRIBEERERSTAT :

2022 2021
—E__ —EF - —4F

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTIT

Within 3 months 3B AR 8,403 478

Over 3 months but less than 3@ A A BB AR 121E A
12 months 1,199 590
Over 12 months 1218 A LA E 81,866 81,604
91,468 82,672

RN BEROGERALA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3t Bt I8 sk R M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(b) Contract liabilities

126

Billings in advance of BHEAE 2 TEWERK
performance obligation
— sales of fabrics — tHEmE

(b)

23. EZ R H A A @

BHRAE

2022 2021
—E_-__ —FE - —4F

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTIT

- 10,913

Contract liabilities are related to receipts from customers
for sales of goods which was not yet delivered to
customers. Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered to customers. The Group receives deposits
upon acceptance of orders on a case-by-case basis with
customers before delivery commences.

Movement in contract liabilities during the year is as
follows:

AMBEBETELRARNTERZ
= mHEB TP BRI Z FKIRAR -
%ﬁ&'&:iﬁég}fﬁfﬁﬁ BULaR o AN G B
RABRNEREIEFFTEMNA
SRR &

‘[ma ]]>

ENBERAFRNZEBHNT

2022 2021
—E_— —EF - —4F

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTIT

At 1 January n—H—H 10,913 14,497
Decrease in contract liabilities as GHEEARRNFANER

a result of recognising revenue Wz mom

during the year - (4,145)
Transfer to other payables EER S H N FRIA (10,913) =
Increase in contract liabilities as GHEEREEmATEY

a result of billing in advance BR B 38 hn

of sales of fabrics - 561
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H = 10,913
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & Bt #5 $k R M &%
For the year ended 31 December 2022
2=

—E - A= —HIFFE

24. BORROWINGS 24. X
2022 2021
—E—— —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETx ARETIT
Current: mE)
Secured bank borrowings (note (a)) BEMIBETER (HiE@) 110,265 110,344
Unsecured bank borrowings (note (a)) AR IRIRITIE IR (MI5E@)) 52,709 52,968
Unsecured bonds (note (b)) ERE S (b)) 792,056 638,180
955,030 801,492
Non-current; IERE
Unsecured bonds (note (b)) ERE S (MFED)) 121,093 169,452
1,076,123 970,944
Notes: B 5E -
(@)  Bank borrowings (@) SRITER
As at 31 December 2022, bank borrowings amounted to RZEBZZ_F+A=+—B FAKEL

approximately RMB102,974,000 (2021: RMB63,312,000) were
overdue. As a result, the Group is subject to a penalty interest
expense during the overdue period.

The Group's bank borrowings of approximately RMB110,265,000
(2021: RMB110,344,000) were secured by its property, plant and
equipment (note 17) and right-of-use assets (note 18).

The effective interest rates and default interest rates on bank
borrowings were ranging from 5.67% to 8.00% and 5.64% to
11.99% (2021: 5.67% to 8.00% and 5.64% to 11.99%) per
annum respectively for the year ended 31 December 2022.

mMEBEROSBRLQF

AR¥102,974,000 (ZE = —F: AR
#63,312,0007T ) K SR 1T & BN E B H -
I NEBASM B BRBENE B -

REBRITEROARK110,265,0007T
(ZZ=——%F: AR¥110,344,00070) B &
ME - BEREE(ME17) RIERAEEE
(BEsE18) fEIE IR -

BHE-_T-_—_#F#+-_A=+—HIFE
RITEFONEBRFNEREDNES F
N F5.67%%E8.00%K5.64%%E11.99%
(ZE - —F:567%%8.00%M5.64%%
11.99%) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

24. BORROWI N G S (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

128

Bank borrowings (Continued)

The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the bank
borrowings is analysed as follows:

—F LA

Within one year

24. B @®

i :

(a)

(%)
RITIEK (48)

RITEFERAENIHERSFTOT

2022
o S

2021
—E-—F
RMB'000
AREF T

RMB’000
AR®T R

162,974 163,312

Unsecured bonds

As at 31 December 2022, the Company issued a number
of HK$- denominated bonds with an aggregate principal of
approximately RMB691,238,000 (2021: RMB636,411,000). The
bonds are unsecured, bearing interest rates at a range of 1.5% —
40% (2021: 1.5% — 40%) per annum, and repayable on demand
or during the period from January 2023 to December 2029
(2021: January 2022 to December 2029). The maturity profile of
the carrying amount of the bonds is analysed as follows:

EEMES

R-ZE-_—_F+_A=+—H AQA*
TZMABTHENES FSBEOA
R#691,238,000t (ZE = —F: AR
636,411,00070) % EEH AEEM  IZF
FMENF15%ZE40% (T =—F:15%
BA0% )T BV BIRERIR _EZ=F
—AE_ZE-_NAF+_A(ZB=—%F:

TR —E-—AE-_T-_hAfFE+C H)Hﬁ
MEE-ZSEFOREENDHER
HIBCENE

2022 AVA|

=== —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR®ET T

Within one year —F LA 792,056 638,180
In the second year —FNR 34,603 62,719
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=ZERF (RDEERRE) 70,934 85,503
After five years hFE 15,556 21,230
913,149 807,632

As at 31 December 2022, unsecured bonds amounted to
approximately RMB721,734,000 (2021: RMB501,158,000)
were overdue. As a result, the Group is subject to a
penalty interest.

Upon completion of issue of scheme shares on 4 January
2023, all the amount owing by the Company to the
bondholders will be discharged and released in full.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
P _ECCFEF A=+ —HIFFE

25. LEASE LIABILITIES 25. HESE

Present value of
Minimum lease payments  minimum lease payments

REEE R BREEENRERE

2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C —E-—% CZE-_C —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TT AR®TR ARETR

Within one year —FUR 232 294 213 279
More than one year, but not —FL R ETNBBMF

exceeding two years 177 147 171 145

409 441 384 424

Less: Future finance charges R REE N E (25) (17) N/A N/A

Present value of lease obligations HEETIRE 384 424 384 424

Less: Amount due for settlement J&i : JER 1218 A M A E 3018

within 12 months (shown (RREEBETIIR)
under current liabilities) (213) (279)
Amount due for settlement FERM2{E A& B E 3R

after 12 months 171 145
The ranging incremental borrowing rates applied to lease BRARHEARCEEEBRNEXEEAR
liabilities 5.0% — 6.0% (2021: 5%). 50%%60% (ZFE=-—F:5%) e
All lease liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and FrEHEBBEAUELRARBE:
RMB.

RN BEROGERALA
2022 ifg‘;&% 1 29



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & 3t Bt I8 sk R M &%
For the year ended 31 December 2022
2 E - A =1 —HIFE

26. DEFERRED INCOME 26. EFEU A

2022 2021
—E_-__ —EF - —F

=

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTIT

Government grants relating to leasehold ~ EEFAE 1 & T HiEEREA

land and land use right BT 2 12,474 12,786
The movements of deferred income during the year are as BEREBARFERANEBHTINT
follows:

2022 2021
—E_C —EF - —F

=

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBT T

At 1 January n—A—H 12,786 13,098
Amortised as income B AW A (312) (312)
At 31 December WR+=—A=+—~H 12,474 12,786
Subsidy of the cost of construction the amount is transferred to BEXNANBESENEEEENA
other income over the useful lives of relevant assets. RAFEARNEEHMIEA -
27. DEFERRED TAX 27. BEEKRIE
At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused REEBR - RERAAERLERK G
tax losses of approximately RMB385,966,000 (2021: B R B A IE E 18 40 A K #5385,966,000
RMB359,161,000) available for offset against future T(ZF=-—F: AR¥359,161,000
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised due TT) o B P M VA TR A R AR B - R T AR
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included REREEE ABERANBEBEESEER
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately TFEANIHARNBEELOAKE363,499,000
RMB363,499,000 (2021: RMB336,694,000) that will expire in T(ZZE=Z—F: AR®336,694,000
five years. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. To) o A A IE IS A R HR AR uE o

1 3 0 MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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28. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 and
1 January 2022 at HK$0.01 per share

28. |BRA&

ERE
WZE-—%—H—8-
—E-—E+-A=+—BE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE—FE-—Ff+ - H=1—HIFFZ

Number of
ordinary shares

EERHE
‘000
T8

HK$000
TER

ZEZZF-A—BRER0.0ET 100,000,000 1,000,000
Effects of share consolidation (note (c)) REBE 6282 (K () (90,000,000) =
At 31 December 2022 at HK$0.1 per share R=-ZE-—f+=-A=+—H
RER.IET 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRARE:
At 1 January 2021 at HK$0.01 per share RZZ2Z—F—A—B&ZER0.01ET 363,025 3,630
Subscription of new shares under general BE—BREERETRD (@)
mandate (note (a)) 72,604 726
Subscription of new shares under general BB —BEERETRN (P35 (D)
mandate (note (b)) 87,126 871
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZFEZ—F+ZA=1T—HRK
at HK$0.01 per share —E-—F—F—H%EER01ET 522,755 5,227
Share consolidation (note (c)) BRBE 6 (HisE()) (470,480) =
Subscription of new shares under general B —RIFEIBHRD (HEE()
mandate (note (d)) 10,455 1,045
Subscription of new shares under general B —RIBEIBH R (HE(e)
mandate (note (e)) 12,546 1,255
Placing of new shares under general BE—RREGEHRA (FEEE)
mandate (note (f)) 15,056 1,506
At 31 December 2022 at HK$0.1 per share R-ZE-—f+=-A=+-—H
RERIETT 90,332 9,033
Equivalent to RMB’000: LEARETR:
At 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+-A=1+—H 4,431
At 31 December 2022 R-ZB-_—_5+-A=+-—H 7,753

mMEBEROSBRLQF
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For the year

==

ended 31 December 2022

EoE - A=+ —HIFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

132

On 29 March 2021, the Company entered into subscription
agreements with the subscribers pursuant to which the
subscribers have conditionally agreed to subscribe, and
the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue,
an aggregate of 72,604,167 subscription shares at the
subscription price of HK$0.096 per subscription share. The
subscription was completed on 26 April 2021. The net
proceeds from the subscription, after deduction of share issue
expenses of approximately HK$0.2 million, was approximately
HK$6.77 million. Details of the subscription were disclosed in
announcements of the Company dated 29 March 2021 and 26
April 2021.

On 16 July 2021, the Company entered into the subscription
agreements with the subscribers pursuant to which the
subscribers have conditionally agreed to subscribe, and the
Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue, an
aggregate of 87,125,893 subscription shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.091 per subscription share. The subscription
was completed on 6 August 2021. The net proceeds from
the subscription, after deduction of share issue expenses
of approximately HK$0.13 million, was approximately
HK$7.80 million. Details of the subscription were disclosed in
announcements of the Company dated 18 July 2021, 21 July
2021 and 6 August 2021.

On 13 January 2022, the share consolidation on the basis
of every ten issued and unissued existing shares of par value
HK$0.01 each into one consolidated share of par value HK$0.10
per each. The share consolidation were effective on 8 March
2022. Details of the above are set out in the Company's
announcements and circulars dated 13 January 2022, 27 January
2022 and 4 March 2022 respectively.
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(a)

RZEZ—F=RA=+NB AQEHEZ
ERBAFILZEREWZE B ZER
BACEBRKUHRERE MAQFEBK
RIS A% MEITA 72,604,167 R 8
&1 REBEASRAEAD0.096% T -
REEER T _—FMNA-_+/ BEK-
Bk A% 17 %17 B X £9200,00078 T 2 % 0 3R
BEEMEFIBFENATTEEST
RESEH FBERAAGAHA-T - —
F=A-t+hAhBR-ZE-_—FEMA=-+
AR RERSE-

RZEZ—F+tA+ "B AQFHEZE
REAFTUZERBEE Bt ZERE
AEBRGRERE MAQXREHKE
R & Bl 3 & 3174 $£87,125,893/% iR B %
7 REBEBEAERAERMKB0.091EBIL-R
BEER-_ZE-_—FN\AXNAZEK -k
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d

On 13 April 2022, the Company entered into subscription
agreements with the subscribers pursuant to which the
subscribers have conditionally agreed to subscribe, and the
Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue, an
aggregate of 10,455,107 subscription shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.24 per subscription share. The subscription
was completed on 11 May 2022. The net proceeds from
the subscription, after deduction of share issue expenses
of approximately HK$0.10 million, was approximately
HK$2.41 million. Details of the subscription were disclosed in
announcements of the Company dated 13 April 2022 and 11
May 2022.

On 5 July 2022, the Company entered into subscription
agreements with the subscribers pursuant to which the
subscribers have conditionally agreed to subscribe, and the
Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue, an
aggregate of 12,546,128 subscription shares at the subscription
price of HK$0.375 per subscription share. The subscription
was completed on 27 July 2022. The net proceeds from
the subscription, after deduction of share issue expenses
of approximately HK$0.08 million, was approximately
HK$4.62 million. Details of the subscription were disclosed in
announcements of the Company dated 5 July 2022 and 27 July
2022.

On 3 November 2022, the Company entered into the Placing
Agreement with the Placing Agent pursuant to which the
Company appointed the Placing Agent as its agent to procure
not less than six Placees to subscribe up to 15,055,354 Placing
Shares at a price of HK$0.52 per Placing Shares under general
mandate. The Placing was completed on 15 December 2022.
The net proceeds from the Placing (after deducting the placing
commission payable to the Placing Agent and other expenses
incurred in the Placing), after deduction of share issue expenses
of approximately HK$0.10 million, was approximately HK$7.73
million. Details of the Placing were disclosed in announcements
of the Company dated 23 November 2022, 24 November 2022
and 15 December 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 28. Hﬁzk (#8)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
share at meeting of the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual asset.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
capital structure of the Group comprises all components of
shareholders’ equity.

The Group reviews the capital structure frequently by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debts,
redemption of existing debts or selling assets to reduce debts.
No change was made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

The only externally imposed capital requirement for the Group
is that in order to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange,
it has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The
Group has maintained a sufficient public float to comply with
the Listing Rules from the date of the Listing.

1 34 MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

29. RESERVES
The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements therein
are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(a)

(b)

(9

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus represents the difference between
the par value of the shares of the Company and proceeds
received from the issuance of the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the contributed
surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However the Company cannot declare or
pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed
surplus if:

- it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

- the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital and share premium accounts.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group mainly represents the
reserve arising from the Group reorganisation.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the
Group's PRC subsidiaries’ articles of association, the
Group's PRC subsidiaries are required to allocate 10% of
its profit after tax as determined in accordance with the
relevant accounting principles and financial regulations
applicable to PRC companies to the statutory reserve until
such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
appropriation to the reserve must be made before any
distribution of dividends to equity holders. The statutory
surplus reserve can be used to offset previous years’
losses, if any, and part of the statutory surplus reserve can
be capitalised as paid-in capital provided that the amount
of such reserve remaining after the capitalisation shall not
be less than 25% of the paid-in capital of the Group's
subsidiaries.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30. XX G EMR AR FEERE
RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) A2 FEBARRE
Company

2022 2021
—E_-= —E-—4F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T

Non-current asset kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R BRRIRE - -
Current assets REBEE
Deposits and other receivables R Rk H A e Y IR 11,661 7,932
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NGIE s - 184
Cash and bank balances Be MIB1T4 3 9
11,664 8,125
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables H A EAS IR 8,453 6,723
Amounts due to subsidiaries NI NGIE e 17,228 15,872
Borrowings Bx 792,056 638,180
Lease liabilities HEaF = 279
817,737 661,054
Net current liabilities REBEEFH (806,073) (652,929)
Total assets less current EEHABRRBERE
liabilities (806,073) (652,929)
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Borrowings B 121,093 169,452
Lease liabilities HEAE - 145
121,093 169,597
Net liabilities BERE (927,166) (822,526)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
B2 —F - —fFf - H=+—HIIFZF

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30. X AT BRRARR #HEE B

RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY ()
(Continued)
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a) ARQFEBBERRE @

Company (continued)

2022 2021
—E__ —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTIT

Equity &
Share capital R% A 7,753 4,431
Reserves (note 30 (b)) f# s (PiFEE30(0b)) (934,919) (826,957)
Capital deficiency =N (927,166) (822,526)
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of R-ZE-_=ZF=ZA=+—HE=E=
Directors on 31 March 2023. RO R T -
Li Wanyuan Lin Yuxi
ZEBT MEER
e EE
Director Director

RN BEROGERALA
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 30. A AR BMBRIRERBEZEES

RESERVES MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
(b) Reserves movement of the Company

(#%)

(b) RNATREZD

138

Operating lease relate to investment property owned by the
Group with lease terms of 5 years (2021: 5 to 10 years). The
lessee does not have options to extend the lease term and to
purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

The unguaranteed residual values do not represent a significant
risk for the Group, as they relate to property which is located
in a location with a constant increase in value over the least
5 years. The Group did not identify and indications that this
situation will change.

MOODY TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
2022 Annual Report

Other Accumulated

reserves losses Total

Hito it L) M@

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETR AR®T

At 1 January 2021 R-E-—%—f—H 903,878 (1,703,218) (799,340)
Subscription of new shares under — RE—RFERETRH

general mandate 11,028 - 11,028

Share issue expenses RN BITRL (341) S (341)
Loss and total comprehensive FABERZANRES

income for the year - (38,304) (38,304)

At 31 December 2021 and RZEZ—4$+ZA=1+—-HkK

1 January 2022 —E--_%—f—H 914,565 (1,741,522) (826,957)
Issue of new shares under BRE-BRREZTHRG

general mandate 4,225 - 4,225
Placing of new shares under BE-REERENRG

general mandate 5,664 - 5,664

Share issue expenses ROBTHEE (251) S (251)
Loss and total comprehensive ERFERZARGZAE

income for the year - (117,600) (117,600)

At 31 December 2022 R-ZB-ZF+-A=t-H 924,203 (1,859,122) (934,919)

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 31. REHERIE
The Group as lessor EEBEREHEA

KEHESRAEERENREWE HE
HARF(ZZE-_—F AE+F) HHEA
ERECRAEHMNAEESERFEEZ
7 E

AERVNHBEEHAEENSLETIERE
ARk ASRZEFEERENYEURE
PHEFREES TEIGMAMER £ RNEE
WEEHNABPRRA LRBFERAS S LE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BPR_FE - —Ff _H=1—HIFFE

31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued) 31. KEHERE @®

The Group as lessor (continued) EEBEREEA @
Minimum lease payments receivables on leases are as follows: HENKEEKHEENKAT

2022 2021
—E_C —E - —4F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTIT

Within 1 year FE—FN 1,176 1,076
In the second year £ F 1,104 1,076
In the third year E=4F 1,080 1,004
In the fourth year FIUF 580 980
In the fifth year ERF = 3,360
3,940 7,496

The following table presents the amounts reported in profit or THREIRERBMENSE:

loss:

2022 2021
—=E—— T —F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTIT

Lease income on operating lease mEREHES KA 1,460 760

RN BEROGERALA
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_FE - _Ff H=+—HIFE

32. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the course of business, the Group has been involved
in litigations initiated by various suppliers, customers and
lenders concerned with the contract disputes, quality of goods
and repayment of debts, including claims of insignificant
or unspecified amounts. Some of the litigations have been
concluded by the court and/or settled, while some of the
litigations are still pending judgement. Since the Group has
already accounted for these payables in the consolidated
financial statements, the directors are of the view that the
litigations will not have any significant financial impact to the
Group.

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) The emoluments of directors and other
members of key management during the
year was as follows:

32. FAREE

33.

AEBREKBECESZEHHER-
EFREFAREGNMUD EmERIE
BEEREZHD BREBLTEARX
YRFTHAEEZRE - F 0 FAAE BIARR
RN N AR SRR EUR o
HRASBEERAEHMBERRTEZF
ENRIE WEZR/ZEFFLET Y
AEEELEERNERMBEE -

BAEE S R 5
(@) FRAESEKHMEIEEEAR
RIS h

2022 2021
—E__ —EF - —F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTIT

Fees e 218 211
Other emoluments H Al
Salaries and allowances e MoERL 1,289 1,598
Retirement benefit scheme RARTE T &I R
contributions a1 30
1,330 1,628
1,548 1,839

Further details of emoluments of directors and other
members of key management during the year are set
out in notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
P _ECCFEF A=+ —HIFFE

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 34. S BE &SR EXRK =
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from () BMEETEEENEEHER

financing activities

The table set forth below is the detail changes in the TRAFMAEEREZHEENE
Group's liabilities arising from financing activities, ENEE BEREMIERSEH -
including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities MEETHFELARBERARERED
arising from financing activities are those for which cash RARKBEEREKRAEE S
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the BehEarkProrBAERETHR:
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash MENAE-

flows from financing activities.

Bank Lease
Borrowings Bonds liabilities Total

RITER it HERE st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®BTR AR®TR AR¥TR

At 1 January 2021 R-E-—F—HF—H 169,223 781,697 - 950,920
Cash flow RemE (7,907) (4,978) (156) (13,041)
Additions NE - - 568 568
Interest expenses FIERAX 15,810 52,462 12 68,284
Transfer to interest BAERNAHE

payables (13,814) - - (13,814)
Exchange difference EREE = (21,549) = (21,549)
At 31 December 2021 and R-ZE-—F+-_A=+—H

1 January 2022 MZE-__F—HF—H 163,312 807,632 424 971,368
Cash flow REeRE (435) - (498) (933)
Gain on the termination & IEFRAEEEKE

of right-of-use assets - - (326) (326)
Additions wE - - 715 715
Interest expenses MEHX 15,551 36,988 46 52,585
Transfer to interest REESFE

payables (15,454) - - (15,454)
Exchange difference ERER - 68,529 23 68,552
At 31 December 2022 RZZE-Z#+=-H=1+—-H 162,974 913,149 384 1,076,507

RN BEROGERALA
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 34. § R & REXRK T @
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HERESRHHALKE
Amounts included in the statement of cash flow for leases SFAHERSRERNESEBEEN
comprise the following: TIER :

2022 2021
—E_-= —E-—4F

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBT T

4

Within operating cash flows REEHEESMEN 56 239
Within financing cash flows REERSREN 452 144
508 383

These amounts relate to the following: 2L HEATIEE B

=113

2022 2021
—=E_— —E-—4F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTIT

Lease rental paid ENEERS 508 383
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35. SUBSIDIARIES

35.

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 December

2022 and 2021 are as follows:

Place of incorporation/
establishment

Registered/issued
and paid up capital

g/ CRTRARRE

For the year ended 31 December 2022
P _ECCFEF A=+ —HIFFE

Lo =G
R—_ZT—— TR —F+ZA=+—

B AATNEARZEENT

Percentage of

ownership Principal activities and
interest place of operation
REERLAR

BAED ITEBREEHSY
2022 2021

Potent Union Holdings Limited
REZRERAR

Digital Assets Group Co., Limited
YTEEEBERAA

Coral Pearl International Limited

ENERARAA

Ultima Prime International Limited

Moody Group (Int'l) Holding Limited
WS E (R RAFRAR

Shishi City Yingfeiling Supply Chain Management Limited

AETAR AL RREEAR LA

Fengtai Hubei Textile Co., Limited*
LR HEERAT

Hongtai (Hubei) Sales Co., Limited*
B GRL)EBERRA

Shishi Hongtai Supply Chain Management Co., Limited*

AEMEARERERERAR

Guangzhou Seojin Trading Co., Limited

EMEERAARAA

Guangzhou Seojin Trading Co., Limited

ENEERAARAA

HKT International Holding Co. Limited

B () ERE HERAT

Moody Trading Limited
MHBHERAR

The British Virgin Islands
("BVI")
ABRAHE
((RERRES])

Hong Kong
&

BvI
EBRAHE

BVI
RBESES

Hong Kong
Bk

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The PRC
Gk

The PRC
P

The PRC
o8

Hong Kong
&

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
&

Us$200
0%
HK$10,000
10,0007

Us§100
100%7T

US$50,000
50,000% T

HK$10,000
10,000 7T

HK$520,000,000
520,000,000/ 7T

RMB50,000,000
A 50,000,000

RMB2,000,000
AR%2,000,0007C

RMB1,000,000
AR1,000,0007

RMB500,000
AR 500,000

HK$500,000
500,000 7

HK$1,000,000
1,000,000 7T

HK$10,000
10,000 7T

—E-C “B--%

Direct 100%  Direct 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong

H100% ERI00%  REER BE

Direct 100%  Direct 100%  Dormant, Hong Kong
ER100%  EEI0% EERED EE

Direct 100%  Direct 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
E#100% BH100% REAER &

Direct 100%
EH100% BH100%

Direct 100%  Dormant, Hong Kong
EXKRY BE

Indirect 100%  Indirect 100%  Investment holding, Hong Kong
RI#100% BE100% REER FA

Indirect 100%  Indirect 100%  Investment holding, the PRC
BiE00%  BEI00% REBR PE

Indirect 100%  Indirect 100% Manufacturing and sales of fabrics, the PRC
RI#100% BEI00% EEREEEM PE

Indirect 100%  Indirect 100%  Sales of fabrics, the PRC
R 100% BE100%  SHEER- RE

Indirect 100%  Indirect 100% Dormant, the PRC
% 100% B#I00% EBEHEH H

Indirect 100% -
R#100% -

Trading of shoes and clothes, the PRC
ERRREES TE

Indirect 100%  Indirect 100% Trading of shoes and clothes, Hong Kong
REI00%  EEI00% BERRRES B

Indirect 100%  Indirect 100% Dormant, Hong Kong
Ri#100% BR100% EERED FE

Indirect 100%  Indirect 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
RI#100% B&100% REER FE

MR ERAAERLQ T
2022 FEWRE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. [t &A= @

144

Place of incorporation/
establishment

AL/ KL

Registered/issued
and paid up capital

B/ ERTRARRE

Percentage of
ownership
interest
RERRER
HEAY TERBREELY
2022 2021

Principal activities and
place of operation

=== R--F

— 5

Moody International Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 Indirect 100%  Indirect 100% Dormant, Hong Kong

FHERESERAT &5 10,0007 RI%100% HEI00%  EBEREY &S

Shenzhen Hengjikang Products Co., Ltd * The PRC RMBS5,000,000 Indirect 100%  Indirect 100% Dormant, the PRC

RIEEERRERAT iled AR 5,000,0007 RiE00%  EE00%  EEKED 8

Hongtai Mandi Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Limited The PRC RMB5,000,000 Indirect 100% - Investment holding, the PRC

ERRBHER (M) ERAT i ARH5,000,0007 Bii00% - BREBRR HE

Hongtai Mandi Technology (Zhuhai) Co., Limited The PRC RMB5,000,000 Indirect 100% - Dormant, the PRC

EEmARE OR8) BRA i AR5,000,0007C BE00% - EXHRE 78

Shishi Meiyina Clothing Co. Limited The PRC RMB1,000,000 Indirect 100% - Manufacturing and sales of clothes, the PRC

RREXEBRHERL A H AR 1,000,000 RI#100% - EERHERS TE

& The English translation of the company names is for reference only. The e NEIBB BB EEHRZD -ZERTA

official names of these companies are in Chinese. The companies are WEFEGERP X -ZERRAREFRBEE
registered as limited liability companies under the PRC law. EaMmABRAR -

As at 31 December 2022, the bank and cash balances of the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB amounted to

approximately RMB531,000 (2021:

RMB395,000). Conversion of RMB

into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations. However, under the PRC's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

2022 Annual Report
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37.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & ff Bt # 3R 3% ff &

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Pursuant to the resolution to approve the Creditor Scheme
(the "Scheme"”) was duly passed on 8 June 2022 and the
Scheme has been sanctioned by the Hong Kong Court on 28
June 2022, the Scheme was effective on 5 September 2022.
The completion of issue of the scheme shares under specific
mandate (“the Completion”) took place on 4 January 2023. An
aggregate of 3,262,705,241 scheme shares were allotted and
issued to the scheme creditors at the issue price of HK$0.317
per scheme share for settlement of the all admitted claims
of the scheme creditors totalling approximately HK$1,034.3
million.

Upon Completion, all the admitted claims owing by the
Company to the scheme creditors, including all amount owing
by the Company, will be discharged and released in full.

Details of the above are set out in the Company’s
announcements and circulars dated 11 November 2020, 11
April 2022, 18 May 2022, 9 June 2022, 28 June 2022, 21 July
2022, 5 September 2022 and 4 January 2023 respectively.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements are approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 March
2023.

36.

37.

For the year ended 31 December 2022
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEHE

OPERATING RESULTS Rkl

Year ended 31 December

BZE+-A=t-ALEE

2021 2020 2019
“Z--F C—ZC°EZF
Revenue (RMB'000) W& (AREFT) 90,544 155,541 206,666 517,665 250,660
Gross profit/(loss) (RMB'000) EH/(8) (ARBTT) 7,396 3,627 (12,315) 11,019 (61)
Gross profit/(loss) margin A/ (8)% 8.2% 23% (6.0%) 2.1% (0.02%)

Loss and total comprehensive income KAREEANEEBER
attributable to owners of the Company 2 HE M &A%

(RMB'000) (AREF) (140,498) (100,528) (219,049) (287,608) (369,281)
Net loss margin RERX 155.2% (64.6%) (106.0%) (55.6%) (147.3%)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET EHEEEER
The following table sets forth our assets/liabilities position as at TFTERBHIHEMR=—_ZE—NF - ZZFT—NLF =
31 December 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022: T2 F 2B —FRZF-_F+=A

=t+t—HWEE AERR:

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-H
2022 2021 2019 2018
—EC-C “E-F TN/ “E-N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARETR RETT ARETT ARETRH
Current assets MEBEE 58,006 21,503 53,509 120,765 146,798
Current liabilities mEaE (1,284,755)  (1,093,130) (983,267) (816,853) (722,576)
Net current liabilities MEAETE (1,226,749)  (1,071,627) (929,758) (696,088) (575,778)
Net liabilities BEFE (1,175.335)  (1,047,797) (959,287) (759,788) (472,180)
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FINANCIAL INDICATORS BT E

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-ALEE

2021

—E-—F
Return on equity (%) (Note 1) RAEIRE (%) (FIzE1) NATER NATERE NATEERE  NATER  NATER
Return on assets (%) (Note 2) BERRE(%) (F:E2) (57.8) (44.1) (78.2) (62.5) (68.0)
Interest coverage ratio (Note 3) FISEEZ (F3) (2.7) (15) 17 1.9 (3.6)

As at 31 December

Current ratio (%) (Note 4) BN (%) (Fi3E4) 45 2.0 5.4 1438 203

Quick ratio (%) (Note 5) REDL & (%) (FI3ES) 37 1.8 5.1 94 16.1

Debt to equity ratio (%) (Note 6) BEBRALLE(%) (FizT6) NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER

Gearing ratio (%) (Note 7) EaBRELE%) (M:7) NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER
Notes: BoaE -

BX

(1) Return on equity was calculated based on our total comprehensive (1) BRARRENIZEHFE2EBSEER AERH
income for the respective year divided by the total equity of the FEBERBRLI00%HE -
respective year and multiplied by 100%.

(2)  Return on assets was calculated based on our loss and total (2) HAERBENEZEBEFEBEREZERSZEER
comprehensive income for the respective year divided by our total assets NEBFEEEBEBRNLI00%E -
of the respective year and multiplied by 100%.

(3)  Interest coverage ratio was calculated based on our loss for the year for ~ (3) FIEBEZXRNIZEMAFE FEBBRINEHET
the respective year divided by our finance costs for the respective year. EHRER ARG HE -

(4)  Current ratio were calculated based on our current assets of the (4) RELLERIEEEBEPNEHEERAEBEDH
respective date divided by our current liabilities of the respective date BB B EEIRA100%ETE -
and multiplied by 100%.
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(5)  Quick ratio were calculated based on our current assets minus (5)
inventories as at the respective date divided by our current liabilities as
at the respective date and multiplied by 100%.

(6) Debt to equity ratio were calculated based on our total debts (being (6)
sum of our total borrowings and amounts due to related parties and
third parties) as at the respective date divided by total equity as at the
respective year and multiplied by 100%.

(7) Gearing ratio were calculated based on our net debts (being total debts (7)
net of cash and cash equivalents) as at the respective date divided by
total equity as at the respective year and multiplied by 100%.
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